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          2                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: I know it's a busy

          3  day for everyone. Just so everyone knows, the

          4  schedule has been moved forward in the Land Use

          5  Committee. We're going to do a vote now on things

          6  that were voted out of planning, and confirm a

          7  withdrawal that was voted out of zoning, and then

          8  we're going to do -- 11:00 Commissioner Tierney is

          9  coming to testify in front of the Committee on the

         10  Executive Budget. 12:00 is Commissioner Burden,

         11  Chair Burden of City Planning. 1:00 is going to be

         12  the Commissioner, the Acting Commissioner of DoITT

         13  and then 2:00 will be the public. Normally, usually

         14  our meetings end early, not late, so the latest we

         15  should be here is around 2:00.

         16                 Commissioner Tierney I know is on his

         17  way to testify, and let's start the agenda for

         18  voting.

         19                 The first one is Bronx Community

         20  Board 5, 20065458 HAX. It is an Article 5

         21  proceeding, Private Housing Finance Law. It's

         22  dissolve and reform the Redevelopment Committee to

         23  refinance for rehabilitation of a project in Maria

         24  Baez's district.

         25                 Land Use 68. Council Member Foster's
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          2  District. It's a ULURP and a UDAAP for a six-story

          3  building with 75 units of housing for low-income.

          4                 LU No. 143 is roll and roster.

          5  20065154 TCK. That has been withdrawn by the

          6  applicant, and we simply need to confirm the

          7  withdrawal.

          8                 LU Nos 127 and 136, UDAAPs in Council

          9  Member Reyna and Council Member Comrie's district.

         10                 Any discussion? Pretty simple today.

         11  Call the roll.

         12                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Chair Katz.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Aye on all.

         14                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         15  Avella.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: Aye on all.

         17                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         18  Comrie.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Aye on all. I

         20  want to thank HPD for working with me on this

         21  stalwart project. Unlike a lot of members, I have

         22  very little City-owned property in my district and

         23  I'm actually working with HPD to try to make this

         24  piece of property something that community groups

         25  can work with, and I want to thank them for their
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          2  indulgence and working with me to try to make that

          3  happen.

          4                 They're using a local developer, NHS,

          5  which has been in my district for some time, and

          6  hopefully we can get the property to be used by

          7  community resources at the end of it.

          8                 Unlike other members, I don't have

          9  another piece of City-owned property, that's even

         10  anywhere near on the rolls to come up any time soon.

         11                 Thank you. Thank you, Madam Chair.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Thank you.

         13                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         14  Jackson.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Aye.

         16                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         17  Sears.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Aye in all.

         19                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         20  Vann.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN: Aye on all.

         22                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         23  Arroyo.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO: Aye.

         25                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member
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          2  Dickens.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS: Aye on all.

          4                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

          5  Garodnick.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK: Aye.

          7                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

          8  Lappin.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: Aye.

         10                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         11  Lanza.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER LANZA: Aye.

         13                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         14  Oddo.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Yes.

         16                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         17  Baez.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER BAEZ: Aye.

         19                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         20  Felder.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Aye.

         22                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         23  Gioia.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA: I vote yes as

         25  well. Thank you.
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          2                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: The vote stands

          3  at 15 in the affirmative, none in the negative and

          4  no abstentions.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: We will only recess

          6  the meeting. We'll keep the roll open since we're

          7  all here anyway for the budget hearings of Land Use.

          8                 Commissioner Tierney is on his way,

          9  and we will start the Landmarks portion of the

         10  budget hearing after we call Councilman Rivera for

         11  his vote.

         12                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         13  Rivera.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA: Aye.

         15                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: The vote stands

         16  at 16 in the affirmative, none in the negative and

         17  no abstentions.

         18                 (Recess taken.)

         19                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Councilman McMahon,

         20  how do you vote? Just vote on this right now.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Okay. I vote

         22  aye on all.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Thank you.

         24                 COUNCIL CLERK: The vote on Land Use

         25  now stands at 17 in the affirmative, zero in the
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          2  negative, no abstentions.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: We will start the

          4  hearing now. However, the Finance Chair is having a

          5  hearing there. He would actually like to be sitting

          6  in here, so he has asked that we postpone until he

          7  is finished in there.

          8                 COUNCIL CLERK: Council Member Clarke.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Aye on all.

         10                 COUNCIL CLERK: Council Member Dilan.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN: Aye on all.

         12                 COUNCIL CLERK: The vote on Land Use

         13  currently stands at 20 in the affirmative, zero in

         14  the negative, no abstentions.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: I guess in all

         16  seriousness, I do want to tell everyone, I had

         17  promised the Commissioner of Landmarks that he could

         18  leave by 12:00. So, once we do start we want to move

         19  ahead. So, if everyone can hang around, we'll start

         20  as soon as we possibly can.

         21                 (Recess taken.)

         22                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: I'm David Weprin,

         23  Chair of the Finance Committee. We are reconvening

         24  Finance, as it was adjourned from the Chamber, and

         25  we are now joint with Land Use.
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          2                 Chair Katz, do you have a statement?

          3  We heard Council Member Felder's statement. We heard

          4  it in the main room.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: I would first like

          6  to thank the Committee members for their patience

          7  and still being here right now. I appreciate it very

          8  much.

          9                 I know the Commissioner appreciates

         10  it. I want the record to reflect, we notified the

         11  Commissioner at ten to eleven that we would start

         12  and I apologize for that. And he has waited until

         13  11:30 and I thank him for that.

         14                 I also made him a promise that he

         15  could be out by 12:00, because he was scheduled to

         16  be here from 11:00 to 12:00. So, I just want to make

         17  that clear.

         18                 Commissioner Tierney, we thank you.

         19  Your relationship with this Committee has been a

         20  good one. We don't always see 100 percent

         21  eye-to-eye, but you're always accessible and I

         22  appreciate that as the Chair, and I know a lot of my

         23  Committee members appreciate that, too. And can we

         24  open up for a hearing? Yes, please.

         25                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: Thank you. And
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          2  Rhonda Wist, the Executive Director of the Landmarks

          3  Commission is here with me.

          4                 Good morning, Chairs Weprin and Katz

          5  and honorable Council members. I'm Bob Tierney,

          6  Chairman of the Landmarks Preservation Commission.

          7                 Thank you for giving me the

          8  opportunity to testify before your Committee on the

          9  Commission's Fiscal Year 2007 Executive Budget.

         10                 The Landmarks Commission, as

         11  everybody knows, is the City agency responsible for

         12  identifying and protecting the City's historical

         13  architectural and cultural heritage. The Commission

         14  carries out its mission by designating individual

         15  landmarks, interior landmarks, scenic landmarks and

         16  historic districts and by regulating the proposed

         17  work on buildings under our jurisdiction.

         18                 To date, as we speak, the Commission

         19  has designated 1,132 individual landmarks and 85

         20  historic districts, 12 extensions of those

         21  districts, with a total of approximately a little

         22  more than 23,000 buildings that are covered under

         23  the jurisdiction of the Commission.

         24                 For the past year, this Commission

         25  has continued to designate buildings as it has from
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          2  as long as I have had the great privilege and honor

          3  of chairing it, throughout the City, all five

          4  boroughs, five borough designation strategy, if you

          5  will. And it's always been my strong aim and

          6  preference.

          7                 And for example, in the Bronx we have

          8  designated most recently the very important

          9  Fieldston Historic District, and then some

         10  individual important designations, Estey Piano

         11  Factory along Bruckner Boulevard, and the interior

         12  of the Leows Paradise Theater on the Grand

         13  Concourse.

         14                 We're also pursing as designation

         15  now, hopefully within the next few months of the

         16  Orchard Beach Bath House and the Promenade in Pelham

         17  Bay Park.

         18                 In Manhattan, we of course don't

         19  forget Manhattan, and while we're engaged in the

         20  Citywide review, we had designated two critically

         21  important historic districts in Greenwich Village,

         22  as well as the individual, a marvelous building, 404

         23  Fifth Avenue and 2 Park Avenue. We're pursuing

         24  designation also, several other individual

         25  landmarks, including the Clairmont Theater in
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          2  Harlem, the Horn & Hardart building on the Upper

          3  West Side, the Morse Building down here, Nassau

          4  Street in Lower Manhattan, and most prominently, I

          5  guess, or certainly interestingly, Public School PS

          6  64 in the East Village which we had a hearing on

          7  three days ago.

          8                 In Queens we have designated the

          9  Fitzgerald-Ginsburg House this year, a neo-Tudor

         10  style mansion. We're also working on the proposed

         11  Sunnyside Gardens in the Historic District.

         12                 Staten Island we have designated the

         13  Seaman Cottage in Richmondtown. That's the one we

         14  had to move to save it. It was a wonderful

         15  partnership all around, and not only designated a

         16  building but wisked it away at the last moment from

         17  potential demolition, with everyone's cooperation I

         18  might add.

         19                 The beautiful Victorian house at 1

         20  Pendelton Place in New Brighton, and the Drake-De

         21  Hart House, an 1850 cottage in tottenville.

         22                 We have, again Last Tuesday, had a

         23  hearing on the proposed Staten Island Savings Bank

         24  in Stapleton.

         25                 And in addition, the Commission is
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          2  looking to designate several other individual

          3  landmarks in Staten Island based on our

          4  recently-completed survey.

          5                 Finally, in Brooklyn, the Commission

          6  is set to calendar within the next few weeks. The

          7  first days of the Crown Heights North Historic

          8  District.

          9                 We will have an important community

         10  meeting there convened by Councilman Vann next

         11  Thursday, at which point we begin the outreach and

         12  the formal process of bringing that district to

         13  formal review.

         14                 At the same time that our Research

         15  Department has been working on the Commission's

         16  designations that I've just very briefly touched on,

         17  the Preservation Department, which is the regulatory

         18  arm, has been issuing permits at, I'm told, and I

         19  observe it, at a record pace for work in already

         20  designated buildings.

         21                 Part of the reflects the overall

         22  economic surge, if you will, in terms of work being

         23  done throughout the City that everyone is aware of,

         24  makes it especially important for us to, in landmark

         25  districts and in designated structures, to be
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          2  especially careful, vigilant and also to keep up

          3  with that surge.

          4                 And we have. We're meeting our time

          5  lines. We're doing more, more permits because of

          6  that activity. There are fortunately more people so

          7  we're able to keep the workload, which had begun to

          8  spike up in terms of the number of people permits

          9  per preservation person, we have now been able to

         10  bring that back down by adding some more examiners,

         11  preservation specialists to keep pace with and

         12  actually even bring down the time lag on some of

         13  these permits, on many of the permits.

         14                 The Commission has been increasing

         15  its outreach efforts also to owners of landmarked

         16  properties to let them know their rights and

         17  responsibilities as landmark owners, and the

         18  importance of working with the Commission in a

         19  cooperative way, which is the best way to get it all

         20  done, but it doesn't always work, it often does,

         21  usually does. If it doesn't, there are other ways to

         22  go, of course, but to obtain the necessary approvals

         23    before proceeding with the work.

         24                 A lot of the problems we have in

         25  terms of violations are sometimes good faith,
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          2  sometimes not, work undertaken without ever getting

          3  a permit. And some time it's through just truly not

          4  knowing that it's required, and to the extent that

          5  our education and outreach has been a factor in

          6  leading to that, we're addressing it. It's

          7  regrettable, and we want to be out there as much as

          8  we can in communities, talking to people, letting

          9  them know this is how the process works in the long

         10  run, it will be much better if everybody talks

         11  before the work begins then rather than after.

         12                 So, as always, we encourage

         13  participation, the public participation in the

         14  hearing process, as you all know, and make every

         15  effort to inform communities of the Landmarks

         16  projects that are going on in their neighborhood.

         17                 Part and parcel of it is the

         18  redesigned website, providing quicker access, more

         19  complete information on all of our designated

         20  properties, and what the Commission is actually

         21  doing from day-to-day.

         22                 Publications available for download

         23  have been updated and increased in number and I

         24  believe they're more readable, they're more

         25  user-friendly, and we get a lot of good response and
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          2  reaction and feedback on them, and they lead to just

          3  greater cooperation, if you will, that I spoke about

          4  earlier.

          5                 Applicants can download also our

          6  rules, all the Commission's rules, big stacks of

          7  them, and if followed, if the rules are followed, or

          8  if the projects that are undertaken are in

          9  conformity with those rules, the situations are

         10  addressed there. And a public hearing and a

         11  certificate of appropriateness is not required.

         12                 But in cases where the work is

         13  outside of those rules, we do have public hearing,

         14  public meeting agendas, which are also available on

         15  the website, application forms, instructions for

         16  filing information about materials you need to be

         17  submitted in order to retain the necessary permits.

         18                 Obviously we're trying to make it

         19  easier for homeowners to be able to interact with

         20  the agency, and keep everybody's interest.

         21                 New to the website is a GIS data on

         22  Landmarks, which can be downloaded with the

         23  appropriate GIS software application. That's a major

         24  step forward.

         25                 And in addition, all the Commission's
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          2  designation reports, which as you know are fairly

          3  voluminous since 2003, that's going forward on the

          4  website, we're now scanning all the thousand that

          5  preceded us, which preceded that time in 2003 of the

          6  earlier designations, in order to make them all

          7  available with the punch of a button on our website,

          8  and that's going to be great, incredibly

          9  educational, interesting, informative and looking

         10  very much forward to that.

         11                 We're also currently in the process

         12  of scanning all of the designation photographs. This

         13  is beyond the reports for the Commission's 85

         14  historic districts, we hope to have these accessible

         15  to the public within the next year or two, I hope

         16  it's not two.

         17                 Finally, the enforcement area. We

         18  have investigated 761 complaints in the first ten

         19  months of the fiscal year, and in the same period

         20  have issued 565 warning letters, 254 notices of

         21  violation, and in some excessive cases, 27 stop-work

         22  orders. And we've also undertaken several lawsuits

         23  to enforce the landmarks law, using new powers that

         24  have, in terms of demolition by neglect, that have

         25  been thankfully conferred on us, in that arena by
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          2  the Council. Councilman Avella, others, who were

          3  instrumental in getting that to us, it's incredibly

          4  important enforcement tool, and it's not necessarily

          5  even how much we use it, I think it's the knowledge

          6  that it is there, sort of the deterrent effect, if

          7  you will. Because it's quite a strong remedy, and

          8  quite a strong deterrent and we're finding that it

          9  to be enormously helpful.

         10                 And similar to the cooperation I

         11  talked about earlier, even when it gets to a

         12  violation stage, we also look to settle, to bring

         13  people in to conform with the rules and the law of

         14  the landmark law. So, two-thirds of the warning

         15  letters actually result in owners coming right into

         16  the Commission, addressing the violation, and that's

         17  the optimum way to handle this.

         18                 The historic preservation grant

         19  program, which I'm particularly proud of, and I

         20  think also is a relatively small fiscally monetarily

         21  part of the agency which is funded through community

         22  development block grants. It offers grants and

         23  matching grants to low and moderate income

         24  homeowners in 501(c)(3) non-profit organizations to

         25  help to restore or repair the facades of their
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          2  buildings.

          3                 The average grant is about $15,000.

          4  Preference is given to owners. We try to leverage it

          5  to owners who use other funds together with this

          6  grant for that important restoration work.

          7                 This Fiscal Year, for example,

          8  several projects funded by the grant program were

          9  completed, including facade restorations for the

         10  Apollo in Harlem, an AIDS Center in the Woodycrest

         11  Highbridge Center in the Bronx, Common Ground at

         12  East 28th Street in Manhattan, the three private

         13  homes of senior citizens in Prospect Lefferts Garden

         14  in Brooklyn.

         15                 In many cases the grants were made

         16  with the understanding that the landmark funds were

         17  seed money towards the larger needs of the building.

         18                 The Commission's grant program staff

         19  worked closely with the recipients to help move the

         20  projects along and spend the funds in an efficient

         21  manner, and that's actually being accelerated this

         22  year, and, again, it's a source of pride, it's

         23  incredibly important, but sometimes not little

         24  noticed aspect of what we do.

         25                 Now to the budget briefly, which is
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          2  of course why I'm here, Fiscal 2000 budget, 2007

          3  budget, is approximately $3.75 million dollars, with

          4  3.2 million in City funds and 562,000 in the

          5  aforesaid community development funds.

          6                 This Administration, the Mayor, Haddy

          7  Harris, people in City Hall, the bull pen, and this

          8  Council, I should add, have been important, and I

          9  truly mean that as partners with everyone here, have

         10  been extremely supportive of the Commission over the

         11  past four years, and the staff has increased by over

         12  15 percent with a total now of 59 staff members, 52

         13  full-time, seven part-time. This Commission is

         14  bigger than the preservation agencies in Washington,

         15  Philadelphia and Chicago combined. It doesn't

         16  necessarily, it's interesting, it doesn't

         17  necessarily prove anything, but I think it's

         18  relevant that we're not skimping or understaffing in

         19  any kind of way, certainly in terms of the rest of

         20  the country and how other people look at landmarks.

         21  And we're way ahead of them.

         22                 Finally, as many of you may recall,

         23  in July 2004, the Commission adopted a fee schedule

         24  for work on landmarked buildings, the buildings that

         25  also required a Building Department permit.
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          2                 So, fee operation is administered by

          3  them seamlessly. I really do mean seamlessly this

          4  time, because, again, knock on whatever, wood, two

          5  complaints in the entire span of the three years of

          6  the permits. And, again, in part for the surge of

          7  economic activity, this fiscal year the Commission

          8  expects to exceed its targeted goal of 1.05 million

          9  in revenue from those fees.

         10                 Thank you all, again, for your time,

         11  and I'll answer any questions you might have.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you,

         13  Commissioner. I just have a couple of brief

         14  questions and then I'll turn it over to Chair Katz.

         15                 How do you employ 52 full-time

         16  people, do everything else you do, on a 3.7 million

         17  dollar budget. That's a very small budget --

         18                 CHAIR TIERNEY: We're underpaid.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN:-- For that many

         20  full-time people.

         21                 I thought the Council was underpaid.

         22                 CHAIR TIERNEY: It's an interesting

         23  observation. Salaries are -- these are incredibly

         24  committed dedicated people work in this agency and

         25  perhaps do take a little less in terms of
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          2  compensation, but in no way diminishes their work

          3  effort, their commitment and their passion for the

          4  cause.

          5                 So, it makes me even more proud of

          6  the people who work there.

          7                 Your observation is correct. I can't

          8  give you agency-to-agency, worker to worker and so

          9  on, but I think the salaries could be boosted up a

         10  little bit and adjusted.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: We had this

         12  discussion I think at previous budget hearings where

         13  I think you talked about expanding the fee program,

         14  you know, fees for landmark applications, and we had

         15  a discussion about, you know, whether that would

         16  supplement your budget, you know, whether it might

         17  discourage applications or not.

         18                 Could you give us some update on what

         19  is happening with the fee schedule? Is that

         20  something you can use to supplement your budget?

         21                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: Well, the fees do

         22  go into the general fund, but in terms of when OMB

         23  is looking at our agency, I think it's a factor in

         24  terms of the increases that I've talked about,

         25  perhaps are influenced by the fact that we were able
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          2  to step up and do -- well, two things happened

          3  because of what happened. We were able to step up to

          4  the fee issue, as OMB and others had wanted us to

          5  consider for years, number one, so remember those

          6  old days when there were peg programs and cuts, and

          7  cutbacks, we were spared from all of those because

          8  we became a self-funding agency, if you will, even

          9  know it's about a third of the overall budget.

         10                 So, that has helped, number one. And

         11  number two. Going forward, I think it has helped

         12  also give us the incremental increases we've had.

         13                 I am not anticipating at all, and I

         14  said this when the fees were adopted, increasing

         15  them.

         16                 That's not my -- the revenue is

         17  increasing by dint of volume, but the actual fee

         18  schedule which was implemented to be modest, and it

         19  is modest and to be non-intrusive and not to

         20  discourage either landmarking or coming in to repair

         21  your buildings I think struck a good balance.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Well, we're

         23  coming to the end of '06. How much have you

         24  collected in fees in Fiscal Year '06?

         25                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: We're not at the
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          2  end yet, but I believe it's about a million-two, or

          3  a 1,250,000.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: So, it's about a

          5  third of your budget on the average?

          6                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: Yes.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay. Well, I

          8  would strongly argue with OMB and I would certainly

          9  support you in that process that you're budget

         10  should be increased, you know, based on your

         11  expanded fee schedule and the amount of money you're

         12  contributing.

         13                 And, again, you know, your budget is

         14  very modest to begin with and you do have those 52

         15  full-time underpaid employees for the most part.

         16                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: They love hearing

         17  that. Believe me, I'm sure. Not being underpaid, but

         18  hearing --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Hope it makes it

         20  worth waiting.

         21                 I'll turn it over to my co-chair,

         22  Chair Katz.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Thank you.

         24                 If you can just very quickly, because

         25  I know we're on a time frame, and I just have a
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          2  question that I don't think we've ever asked, which

          3  is, the personnel, is it divided between those that

          4  do the administrative tasks, like, you know, whether

          5  or not you can make an addition to your house,

          6  whether you can paint, all that stuff, and also then

          7  as opposed to those that go out and actually do the

          8  research on the historical districts and the

          9  landmarking.

         10                 If it's divided, what percentage of

         11  the budget goes for one, and what percentage of the

         12  budget goes for the other?

         13                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: Also a good

         14  question. I'll give you the exact breakdown from the

         15  59, which is roughly equivalent to the budget

         16  allocation.

         17                 So, 59 staff members. Twenty-four in

         18  preservation. And preservation is the regulatory

         19  side, all the applications. Twenty-four includes,

         20  it's 17 people who actually do, the analysts, if you

         21  will, the preservation specialists, and the seven

         22  are administrative in that Department. So, that's 24

         23  out of the 59 for that.

         24                 Research Department, which as you

         25  described, gets out in the field, does the homework,
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          2  does the evaluations of the requests for new

          3  designations. Total of 11 people, approximately

          4  eight or so are research professionals. Archeology

          5  and environmental review is four, sort of more

          6  closely aligned with research than with

          7  preservation.

          8                 Enforcement and legal six. Which is

          9  great. Still small, but it's coming up a lot from

         10  those days when it really was not acceptable to have

         11  one person or one and a half persons doing

         12  violations, and I believe, you know, that's a good

         13  development.

         14                 Others, which I guess includes me, is

         15  14 people, which would be overall administrative.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: So, basically on a

         17  59-person staff you have 30 people that do the

         18  preservation and the enforcement provisions.

         19                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: That's right.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: It says about 30 to

         21  59.

         22                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: That's right.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: I'd say, so you

         24  probably have an even amount of folks. You have

         25  about 20 people that do the preservation, 24 people
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          2  that do the preservation, 11 that do the research.

          3                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: Yes.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: All right. We just

          5  wanted to know. And what percentage of the budget

          6  then would be the preservation regulatory side, as

          7  opposed to the research?

          8                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: Somebody do the

          9  math. Let's see.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Is it divided

         11  basically?

         12                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: To the personnel,

         13  the headcount, yes, it is.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: All right.

         15                 I'm going to ask Chair Lappin of the

         16  Subcommittee on Landmarks, whether she has any

         17  questions.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: Thank you,

         19  Madam Chair. Nice to see you.

         20                 So, of the first ten months of fiscal

         21  year, you said there were 74, 112 actions.

         22                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: Correct.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: For

         24  applications for work.

         25                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: Correct.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: So that's

          3  what's done by, that's the work, the 7,400 actions

          4  that are done by the preservation side.

          5                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: That's right. Sarah

          6  Carol, behind me, is the leader of that staff.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: And what's the

          8  average time, turn around time from when somebody

          9  applies to do an alteration or a change and gets a

         10  response back?

         11                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: Totally varies, of

         12  course, to the nature of the changes. And maybe Sara

         13  will have to help me out on all the specifics, but

         14  there's a segment of applications that are called

         15  Certificates Of No Effect. CONEs as they say in the

         16  biz, that have a 48-your turnaround. This is where

         17  basically you make a certification. You are able to

         18  prove, demonstrate with drawings that the work

         19  you're doing has literally no affect on protected

         20  landmarks exteriors and so on, or even interior as

         21  part of the building. You demonstrate it fast and

         22  it's done.

         23                 And maybe Sarah will give you a rough

         24  how many will fall into these categories. And then

         25  straight up staff permit where there is in effect a
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          2  certificate, a staff permit, without going to the

          3  full commission, again, ranges of course on the

          4  degree of complexity and the amount of the work.

          5                 And then full-blown going to the

          6  Commission for a Certificate of Appropriateness

          7  after a public hearing, with all the requisite time

          8  frames by statute that are built into that, for

          9  notice, for community board approval, for outreach

         10  to advocates and others, that can be extended, an

         11  extended period of time, not necessarily because of

         12  us, but, I mean hopefully we try to expedite it, but

         13  maybe Sarah Carroll, if you wish, could give you a

         14  little more of specifics on, if you have an overall

         15  average, I don't know.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Please identify

         17  yourself for the record.

         18                 MS. CARROLL: Sarah Carroll, Director

         19  of Preservation.

         20                 The expedited Certificates Of No

         21  Effect, which Commissioner Tierney was referring to,

         22  account for about 20 percent of our applications.

         23  So, about 100 a month out of approximately 500 to

         24  600 applications per month.

         25                 The other work is divided into
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          2  whether or not it's a staff approval or a public

          3  hearing process. And the thing to remember is that

          4  these applications are applicant-driven. So, it

          5  depends on how quickly the applicant gets the

          6  material to us.

          7                 But once an application is deemed

          8  complete, a staff permit can be issued within

          9  approximately two weeks from that time, and the

         10  applications that go to a public hearing, and

         11  Certificates of Appropriateness, after they go

         12  through the hearing process, can be a month to two

         13  months. It is from the time that we get those final

         14  drawings and they're completed, it's also about a

         15  two-week turn-around to get the permit.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: So, it ranges

         17  from about 48 hours to three months, give or take?

         18                 MS. CARROLL: Depending on the type or

         19  permit, the type of work.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: And is it

         21  manageable? I mean, are there delays in issuing

         22  decisions because there is an adequate staff?

         23                 MS. CARROLL: I would say that most of

         24  the delays that occur are actually because we are

         25  waiting for the owners' representatives to submit
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          2  information to us. And I think that's sometimes the

          3  confusion. Sometimes the owners --

          4                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: Then the owners are

          5  told, it's Landmarks, what are we going to do? And

          6  then told by let's say the architect or the

          7  expediter who has not given us the material.

          8                 I'm not saying we are never

          9  responsible for delay. We are, of course, and that's

         10  regrettable, but we are pretty good.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: So, let's

         12  switch to the other --

         13                 MS. CARROLL: It's about two weeks for

         14  a turnaround, once something --

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: So, let's

         16  switch to the research side.

         17                 About how many RFPs? Because we said

         18  7,400 actions within these ten months. About how

         19  many requests for evaluations do you get?

         20                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: Approximately 107

         21  on an annual basis. It jumps up and down.

         22                 Marybeth Batts is here, if I need to

         23  bring her up, I will, who is the director of

         24  research.

         25                 But I'll answer. I'll keep answering.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: So about 170?

          3                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: Correct.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: And of those

          5  170, what would be the breakdown, in a sense,

          6  between historic districts and individual

          7  properties?

          8                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: The normal

          9  breakdown of actual designations have run in the

         10  range of approximately four to one.

         11                 That is to say 12, 13, 14 individual

         12  landmarks, two, three, four historic districts on an

         13  annual basis. So, my guess is that that roughly

         14  reflects the RFP percentage, so roughly a quarter,

         15  maybe smaller number of the 170 would be for

         16  districts, and the rest would be for individuals.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: I think there

         18  may be a sense, and I don't know that some of my

         19  other colleagues are going to chime in, that if you

         20  had more staff, particularly on the research side,

         21  of those, you know, 170 RFPs that you received, you

         22  could do a lot more in terms of designating,

         23  particularly in some of the outer boroughs, than

         24  just doing -- you know, I don't mean to minimize

         25  what you do, because you do a lot, and you
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          2  particularly with what you have, but that you would

          3  be able to do more.

          4                 And, so, in fact, actually Council

          5  Member Avella and I are trying in the budget process

          6  to secure, I think it's $500,000, for the Landmarks

          7  Preservation Commission, to enable you to do more

          8  surveying and research and to go through those

          9  proposals more rapidly, because I think -- you know,

         10  once somebody submits an RFP, because, you know, if

         11  they're submitting, if you're getting anywhere

         12  between 150 and 200 every year, so they're

         13  continuing to grow and grow --

         14                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: Sure. Exactly.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: But you're

         16  only able to do two to four districts a year, that

         17  means that all these other applications that have

         18  come in you haven't had time to go through, and I

         19  mean, the pile is just getting higher and higher.

         20                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: She has big piles

         21  of things in her office, but they are addressed.

         22                 But I think what I would observe on

         23  that is more people, and I don't always say this, if

         24  we only had more of everything, we would do more and

         25  more, but more people working in research would
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          2  produce more --

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: Right,

          4  designations.

          5                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: Designations.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: Which I think

          7  a lot of us would like to see.

          8                 The Finance Division, and I wanted to

          9  just confirm this, said your average salary for a

         10  researcher is about $47,000; is that about right,

         11  give or take?

         12                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: Right.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: So, if we're

         14  successful in the City's budget process of securing

         15  another $500,000, that would mean you could hire

         16  about ten more people?

         17                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: You don't have to

         18  answer that.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: All right.

         20                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: We would see what

         21  happens. In the hypothetical scenario you just

         22  addressed, we would be able to bulk up the Research

         23  Department.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: And I think

         25  that's certainly my intent. It's not -- if the money
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          2  is secured, not to go, it would be used to do more

          3  progressive surveying and research to really advance

          4  the agenda.

          5                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: Mm-hmm.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: And that is

          7  something that you would agree to do?

          8                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: Too hypothetical,

          9  but --

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: Too

         11  hypothetical, okay. All right, well, thank you very

         12  much, Madam Chair.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Council Member

         14  Clarke. Then Diana is next.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Council Member

         16  Clarke.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Thank you very

         18  much, Madam Chair, Mr. Chair, and good afternoon to

         19  you, Commissioner.

         20                 I wanted to follow up on some of what

         21  Jessica requested. Because what I was looking at was

         22  the statement made in your written testimony about

         23  setting the calendars.

         24                 It says here, page one at the bottom,

         25  finally in Brooklyn the Commission is set to
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          2  calendar the first phase of the Crown Heights North

          3  Historic District.

          4                 And my question is, is there like a

          5  projection done by your team regarding how many

          6  district projects can be accomplished in a fiscal

          7  year?

          8                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: Yes, there is. It

          9  tends to range, as I said earlier, historically, two

         10  to three districts, sometimes four in a given year,

         11  and we are planning over the next two to three

         12  years, I guess is the safest out year to go to,

         13  about what we're looking at, what is in that

         14  pipeline.

         15                 I know you have a district that we're

         16  very interested in --

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Fipps Terrace

         18  (phonetic), Midwood Park.

         19                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: Fipps Terrace

         20  Midwood Park is very much in that pipeline,

         21  somewhere just near Crown Heights North.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Okay.

         23                 But my question really went to what

         24  Council Member Lappin was saying in that. You know,

         25  I think before this body, we'd like to get a sense
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          2  that if we could advocate on the Council's side, we

          3  would be able to uptick your projections in a given

          4  fiscal year.

          5                 And do you have a sense based on your

          6  budget beyond I guess personnel hours what the cost

          7  is for actually, you know, have you done sort of a

          8  cost benefit analysis, given where you were, where

          9  you're now, and where we're kind of demanding you to

         10  go?

         11                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: Marybeth has

         12  provided me with -- and it's in a range.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Right.

         14                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: Basically we've

         15  picked, oh, I don't know, let's say 20 historic

         16  districts that are of serious interests and that we

         17  want to address. And then broken them down according

         18  to size and complexity and whatever, and she has

         19  given to me and we've analyzed it, how many of her

         20  staff we would need for how many months. Two people

         21  three months, one person six months, whatever, and

         22  done that analysis.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Right.

         24                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: So, I have a pretty

         25  good idea now of what the universe is with existing
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          2  resources. And we can't quantify it. So, if more

          3  research people were to be in the agency then it

          4  would result in -- we would then factor that into

          5  that formula.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Yes.

          7                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: If you will, so

          8  it's a little unscientific, and it's a range, but we

          9  could factor it in and we would probably almost

         10  without question add things into the pipeline.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Let me just

         12  ask -- I'm sorry. Has that information been shared

         13  with Chair Lappin?

         14                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: I don't think the

         15  time, one researcher for two districts, but we could

         16  certainly share it with you.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Right. I think

         18  that would be great, in terms of informing, you

         19  know, the initiative that you and Council Member

         20  Avella is advancing, because I think that's

         21  something a lot of our colleagues will certainly be

         22  interested in.

         23                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: Sure.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Just finally,

         25  the endowment of the Commission's historic
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          2  preservation grant program.

          3                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: Yes.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Can you tell

          5  us how much that is? Is it strictly community

          6  development block grant funding?

          7                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: It is strictly

          8  Community Development Block Grant funds.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: So, that's

         10  limited to the 565,000?

         11                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: And of that, just

         12  to be completely clear about it, of the 562,000, the

         13  actual grant money that goes out, because the CD

         14  funds are also used for other planning functions in

         15  the agency, we're able to -- the environmental and

         16  the archeology people that I've referred to here are

         17  paid with CD funds.

         18                 So, of the overall CD fund budget of

         19  562, 372 is for personal service, and 189 this

         20  fiscal year has been for the grants.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: I raise --

         22                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: The actual outlay

         23  OTPS.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Yes. I raise

         25  that because, you know, my district has several
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          2  landmark designation areas, and in those areas are a

          3  lot of seniors. And I notice that you were helping

          4  some of the seniors with a matching grant program.

          5  And I wouldn't just want to send out a newsletter,

          6  right? And get all these seniors saying --

          7                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: Well, there's a

          8  limited amount of money --

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Exactly.

         10  That's what I was trying to get at. How was it

         11  advertised? How do people --

         12                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: I think maybe you

         13  could put it in your newsletter. I would encourage

         14  that.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Okay.

         16                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: We go to community

         17  meetings, and whenever I'm out there speaking to

         18  people, maybe Diane Jackier will elaborate on this,

         19  again, you don't want to raise false expectations.

         20  It doesn't mean that everyone applies gets a grant,

         21  obviously.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Right.

         23                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: But my sense has

         24  always been more outreach the better, right Diane?

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Three of the
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          2  grantees are from my district. Seniors.

          3                 MS. JACKIER: I was just -- I'm sorry,

          4  I'm Diane Jackier. We were just in your neighborhood

          5  last week, and we were talking to a lot of people

          6  about the grant program, and a lot of people in your

          7  neighborhood do qualify.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Yes.

          9                 MS. JACKIER: So, it's terrific. Right

         10  now I think we have five people in your

         11  neighborhood.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Okay. Thank

         13  you very much, Chairs. And thank you, Commissioner.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: I'm going to please

         15  remind my colleagues what I said. I did promise the

         16  Commissioner he could be out by twelve. It's already

         17  five minutes late. But I'm going to ask you to stay

         18  another five minutes.

         19                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: Sure.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: We have Council

         21  Member Reyna and Council Member Dickens, who would

         22  like to ask some questions.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Thank you,

         24  Madam Chair.

         25                 I just wanted to prefix my statement

                                                            43

          1  FINANCE, LAND USE AND TECHNOLOGY IN GOVERNMENT

          2  that both chairs have already highlighted an

          3  initiative, or the need for an initiative in the

          4  Council, and you'll be thrilled to know that two

          5  different groups are going to be issuing the

          6  requests for additional monies designated to the

          7  Department of Research.

          8                 Because I, too, put in such a request

          9  seeking assistance from my colleagues in support of

         10  this. So that we've seen the need for additional

         11  staffing at that level, and what I've learned from

         12  the budget process, having designated successfully

         13  within the Council more money for enforcement with

         14  truck enforcement in the City of New York, if we

         15  didn't designate it for a specific tier, it was

         16  never applied to that specific that would do the

         17  truck enforcement.

         18                 And, so, money was just assumed by

         19  the Department that it would go to level one rather

         20  than level three.

         21                 And, so, therefore, the money was not

         22  applied where we needed it the most. And, so, I

         23  wanted to just be mindful what Council Member Clarke

         24  has mentioned because that's not added highlight to

         25  how we need to be mindful of how we earmark money.
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          2                 CHAIR TIERNEY: Sure.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: I know my

          4  initiative of adding $500,000 more to your

          5  Department is strictly for the research and

          6  designation of additional staffing to be able to go

          7  through the pile of applications.

          8                 CHAIR TIERNEY: And, of course, having

          9  been more highlighted, having gone through a waiting

         10  list of applications that have been submitted in my

         11  tenure through landmarks that have yet to be truly,

         12  you know, investigated.

         13                 CHAIR TIERNEY: Sure.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: So, I wanted to

         15  just share with the Chairs of Land Use, to be

         16  mindful that there are two initiatives that have

         17  been submitted.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: And I'm

         19  thrilled to hear that. I think it's one of the flaws

         20  in our new budget process because we didn't know

         21  that and we would be very happy to work together. I

         22  think we all have the same goal, which is getting

         23  more money to do more research. And I hope that

         24  means that you got ten people and we got ten people,

         25  and that means that 20 people in this City Council
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          2  think this is a good idea. And I think that's

          3  fantastic. So, thanks, Diana.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Okay, Council

          5  Member Dickens.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS: Thank you,

          7  Madam Chair, and thank you for the testimony.

          8                 Rather quickly, the Preliminary

          9  Budget Hearings, our colleagues raised the issue

         10  about your agency's lack of diversity in the

         11  preservationists and in researchers.

         12                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: Correct.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS: I at the time

         14  provided you with the names of an Asian, Latino and

         15  African American Preservationist, and I suggested

         16  further that CUNY could serve as a source, in which

         17  you might be able to utilize of the students in

         18  exchange for credit, class credit.

         19                 I'd like to know have you started an

         20  implementation, have you started a commencement of

         21  writing of an implementation?

         22                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: We are exploring

         23  that. Those are great suggestions.

         24                 I can't say to you that we're

         25  implementing it now, but they're wonderful
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          2  suggestions.

          3                 I am addressing the overall, very

          4  mindful of and am addressing the broad issue of

          5  diversity in the agency every day, and these are

          6  important suggestions that are part of that overall.

          7                 Do you want to add something, Rhonda,

          8  to this?

          9                 MS. WIST: (Not using the microphone.)

         10  I just want to say that we are with minority from

         11  the various schools in New York City.

         12                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: That you are

         13  seeking, and CUNY.

         14                 Jennifer Raab, who is the president

         15  of Hunter College was a predecessor of mine at

         16  Landmarks, and she's interested in this as well. So,

         17  it's well taken advice. Thank you.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS: Thank you so

         19  much.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Okay, Council

         21  Member Brewer.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Along the

         23  issue of timing, I know just today we learned that

         24  there's Dakota Garage on 76th Street which a

         25  developer has purchased, a huge site. It's on the
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          2  list of can this ever be landmarked. So, the

          3  question is, what is the, given your constraints,

          4  what is the general time frame between a group like

          5  Landmark West, bringing an issue of a potential

          6  designation to your attention, and it being heard,

          7  that's question number one. And then the second

          8  issue is, I know, I believe that when a building DOB

          9  permit is requested, then that can no longer be part

         10  of the landmark discussion. That's a question.

         11                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: Let me go to the

         12  Building Permit first. It can be part of the

         13  discussion for sure. There is a legal issue involved

         14  in terms of whether it, some say it's a settled law,

         15  it's in the Statute, that a Building Permit validly

         16  issued, sustained by the courts and so on, that that

         17  building permit of a certain kind, demolition,

         18  alteration, will supersede any subsequent

         19  designation, or a calendaring or a designation.

         20                 But it doesn't mean we discuss it.

         21  And we don't discuss it, believe me, I don't give up

         22  simply because there is such a permit outstanding,

         23  we're not exactly in the strong -- I don't want to

         24  talk too much about it, but I'd rather be in a

         25  stronger position than that, and sometimes we're at
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          2  a disadvantage, but I don't give up simply because

          3  of that.

          4                 Secondly, the designations and the

          5  RFEs, very much like what Sarah was describing or

          6  even more so, actually, in terms of the preservation

          7  wing of the agency, it's a whole range of time

          8  frames, and it depends on a lot of things, the scope

          9  of the application, how many buildings are involved.

         10  Basically the worthiness. A lot of the worthiness,

         11  all of the RFEs get a pretty quick first look which

         12  is able to take out and bring into a more sometimes

         13  urgent and sometimes higher priority list, based on

         14  all those factors, worthiness, endangerment, and so

         15  on.

         16                 So, it varies.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Thank you.

         18                 And, we will, I guess, be in further

         19  discussions regarding the budget issue.

         20                 The only issue I have, and we had

         21  this with City Planning, is my fear that even if we

         22  allocate money this year, you can't hire people

         23  permanently because you don't know if you're getting

         24  it next year.

         25                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: No.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: And that always

          3  with City Planning has been an issue as well.

          4                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: Yes.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: All right. We thank

          6  you very much for your patience, for your testimony

          7  here today.

          8                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: Thank you. Thank

          9  you, all.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: I look forward to

         11  seeing you soon.

         12                 CHAIRMAN TIERNEY: Thank you all very

         13  much.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you for

         15  coming.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Commissioner Burden

         17  is on her way. Very close. Then we'll start right

         18  away.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: We'll take a

         20  two-minute recess.

         21                 (Recess taken.)

         22                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: We're a few minutes

         23  late but we seem to be running relatively on

         24  schedule. And thank you.

         25                 And Commissioner Burden and Richard
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          2  Barth, it's nice to see you here. And the Chair of

          3  Finance is joining us. Thank you. Please.

          4                 CHAIR BURDEN: Good afternoon, Chairs

          5  Katz and Weprin. I think you have my testimony

          6  before you, but I am very delighted to be here to

          7  testify before the distinguished members of the Land

          8  Use and Finance Committee.

          9                 It is a pleasure to come before you

         10  today to discuss the Mayor's Fiscal Year 2007

         11  Executive Budget and four-year financial plan as it

         12  relates to the Department of City Planning.

         13                 As you know from my testimony in

         14  March, the Department of City Planning has a full

         15  spectrum of initiatives affecting many communities

         16  throughout the City. The impact of now more than 64

         17  rezonings is being felt, enabling the City's diverse

         18  residential neighborhoods, business districts and

         19  mixed use areas to realize their full potential.

         20                 Since I appeared last March, three

         21  Department initiatives were approved by the City

         22  Council. We're very grateful. A balanced rezoning of

         23  80 blocks of Midwood in Brooklyn, and in Queens

         24  contextual rezoning of 83 blocks of union utopia,

         25  and 82 blocks of Bayswater/Far Rockaway.
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          2                 We were gratified to have the support

          3  of the Council, and I would particularly like to

          4  thank Chair Katz, and Tony Avella, Chair of the

          5  Zoning Subcommittee, for their leadership in

          6  sheparding these applications.

          7                 I would also like to mention that the

          8  Department has sold over 4,500 copies of the

          9  newly-revised Zoning Handbook, and its demand

         10  remains strong after two months after its release.

         11                 Just last week the Department

         12  certified the proposed Stapleton Special District

         13  and a package related to the actions to reclaim the

         14  US Navy Homeport property in Staten Island.

         15                 Taken together, these actions will

         16  catalyze the creation of 12 acres of park land, a

         17  continuous waterfront esplanade, and appropriate

         18  retail and commercial uses.

         19                 With the Mayor's allocation of $66

         20  million for public improvements, this plan will help

         21  knit the historic community of Stapleton back to its

         22  remarkable waterfront.

         23                 I would like to thank Councilman Mike

         24  McMahon, who is not here yet, for his leadership in

         25  this long anticipated initiative.
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          2                 On May 2nd, the Department convened,

          3  reconvened the 125th Street Advisory Committee to

          4  present for discussion the preliminary zoning

          5  framework for this remarkable thoroughfare.

          6                 I would like to thank Council Member

          7  Dickens, Jackson, and Viverito, for their

          8  involvement with this comprehensive study, and look

          9  forward to an ongoing collaboration, as we refine

         10  our proposal and bring it forward for a public

         11  review.

         12                 We are also poised to certify the

         13  first phase of a comprehensive rezoning at Bedford

         14  Stuyvesant. This rezoning will not only provide a

         15  better framework to preserve the distinctive

         16  Brownstone character of this rejuvenated

         17  neighborhood, but will also work in concert with

         18  HPD's housing program, to stimulate mixed income

         19  development on appropriate sites.

         20                 I would like to thank Council Member

         21  Vann for his continued leadership on this important

         22  initiative.

         23                 In Queens, we will soon bring to the

         24  Council the balanced rezoning of Maspeth, Woodside,

         25  encompassing 130 blocks which will update the
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          2  existing 40-year-old zoning to prevent outer

          3  character development on local neighborhood streets,

          4  while allowing higher density residential and mixed

          5  use development on portions of Queens Boulevard.

          6                 We were pleased to work with Council

          7  Member Gioia to build consensus in this community on

          8  this far-reaching initiative and look forward to

          9  bringing an affordable housing component to fruition

         10  with the help of HPD.

         11                 Of course, the project I have

         12  mentioned are just a sampling of the Department's

         13  total work program, a snapshot at this particular

         14  moment in time.

         15                 As always, the Department's program

         16  is considerable, as we stretch resources to be

         17  responsive to the needs of neighborhoods and

         18  business districts across the City.

         19                 When Richard and I last testified on

         20  the budget, several of you brought up the issue of

         21  notification of property owners within the

         22  boundaries of area-wide rezonings.

         23                 You raised concerns that some

         24  property owners may be unaware of rezonings, and not

         25  have their voices heard during their official review
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          2  process.

          3                 We share many of your concerns, and

          4  have examined most of the issues that need to be

          5  addressed. We look forward to discussing these with

          6  you.

          7                 Now let me turn to the budget

          8  situation. The Department began Fiscal Year 2006

          9  with an expense budget appropriation of 20.3

         10  million, which consisted of 7.6 million in City

         11  funds and 12.7 million dollars in federal funds.

         12  Thus, 38 percent of the budget was City dollars, and

         13  62 percent federal dollars.

         14                 When the current budget was adopted

         15  in July 2005, the Department of City Planning's

         16  Authorized Headcount was 264 staff positions, of

         17  which 90 were tax levy funded, and the remaining 174

         18  positions were funded with federal dollars.

         19                 The Department's adopted budget

         20  included one-year City Council funding of 469,000

         21  for lower-density studies, a total of six tax levy

         22  positions were added to the budget to enable the

         23  Department to use the Council-funded increase for

         24  new planners in the borough offices.

         25                 Since adoption, the Department has
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          2  undergone three financial plan changes, pursuant to

          3  the directions of OMB.

          4                 As part of the November Plan, several

          5  funding adjustments, as well as a rollover of grant

          6  funding for transportation work and for the Fresh

          7  Kills master plan and environmental assessment.

          8                 The Department once again received a

          9  one-year commitment of $50,000 and one position for

         10  continuing work on the Staten Island Growth

         11  Management Task Force.

         12                 Further, a one-time increase of

         13  $40,000 was added to the Department's Other Than

         14  Personal Service Tax Levy Budget for printing of the

         15  Zoning Handbook.

         16                 The January Plan made several funding

         17  adjustments to reflect such items as increases for

         18  collective bargaining and other than personal

         19  services, as well as one-time increases for street

         20  light and power and DoITT telecommunication costs.

         21                 In addition, funding for the Zoning

         22  Handbook was switched to community development

         23  funds.

         24                 The January Plan added 24 positions

         25  and $3.6 million from federal and State grants.
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          2                 The portion of the Department's

          3  budget funded by federal and State grants is now at

          4  the actual budgeting staff level of 41 positions of

          5  total funding of $4.8 million.

          6                 As in the past, the start of the

          7  fiscal year 2007 will only reflect a portion of the

          8  total anticipated federal and State grant funding.

          9                 The January Plan also included

         10  permanent additions to the tax levy budget for

         11  Fiscal Year 2007, in subsequent years of 398,000,

         12  and seven positions to increased staffing in the

         13  Manhattan, Brooklyn and Queens Borough Offices, the

         14  Population Division, Human Resources Division and

         15  the Department's Information Technology Division.

         16                 In addition, $100,000 will be

         17  permanently added to the Department's Other Than

         18  Personal Service Budget in Fiscal Year 2007 and

         19  subsequent years.

         20                 The recently released Executive

         21  Budget makes the following changes to the

         22  Department's budget.

         23                 For Fiscal Year '06, there were

         24  several small adjustments to the Department's budget

         25  for collective bargaining, DoITT communications and
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          2  heat, light and power.

          3                 In addition, State waterfront grant

          4  funding of $350,000 was included in the Department's

          5  budget for the Freshkills Park Project.

          6                 For Fiscal Year '07, the Department

          7  will receive an increase of $4.5 million in tax levy

          8  funding. This consists of $933,000 in personal

          9  service funding and a one-time $3.5 million in other

         10  than personal service funding.

         11                 For Fiscal Year '08 and subsequent

         12  years, $1.1 million in personal service tax levy

         13  funding has also been added.

         14                 In recognition of the large increase

         15  in the Department's work program, and the number of

         16  private applications. The personal service funding

         17  will provide for 21 new positions. Fourteen of the

         18  21 new positions will be funded beginning July 1st,

         19  2006 and the remaining seven positions will be

         20  funded beginning January 1, 2007.

         21                 In Fiscal Year '08, all 21 positions

         22  will be funded beginning July 1, 2007. Of the 21,

         23  positions, ten are allocated to the Borough Offices,

         24  three for Hudson Yards Implementation, and one for

         25  the Staten Island Growth Management Task Force. Four
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          2  urban designers, one for the Zoning Division, one

          3  for the Information Technology Division, and one for

          4  the Department's Operations Division.

          5                 Funds for three of the 21 positions,

          6  two for Hudson Yards and one for the Staten Island

          7  Growth Management Task Force, represent the baseline

          8  of positions funded previously on a year-to-year

          9  basis.

         10                 As you know, we have been extremely

         11  appreciative of the resources for six positions

         12  provided by the Council in Fiscal Years '05 and '06

         13  budgets.

         14                 These positions have allowed us to

         15  undertake a number of neighborhood rezonings in all

         16  five boroughs.

         17                 The new staff provided for in this

         18  Executive Budget would allow us to build on these

         19  Council resources, and enable us to advance further

         20  the wide array of planning initiatives and private

         21  applications in our work program.

         22                 The Department will receive a

         23  one-time funding of 3.35 million for consultant

         24  services in Fiscal '07. Of this amount, 3.25 million

         25  is allocated for environmental and planning
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          2  consultant services to advance the larger and more

          3  complex Department-initiated rezonings.

          4                 An addition $100,000 is budgeted for

          5  consultant to assist the Department in modernizing

          6  its Land Use application process by integrating it

          7  better with technology, making it more efficient,

          8  and improving a transparency of the process.

          9                 Additional one-time other than

         10  personal service funding of $96,000 is allocated for

         11  costs associated with the 21 new staff positions.

         12                 As a result of these changes, the

         13  Department's Fiscal Year 2007 Executive Budget calls

         14  for a total allocation of $24.8 million. Tax levy

         15  funds constitute $12 million or 48 percent of the

         16  proposed budget, while federal funds constitute

         17  $12.8 million or 52 percent of the proposed budget.

         18                 This provides for 284 budgeted staff,

         19  110 City-funded positions, and 174 federally-funded

         20  positions.

         21                 On the revenue side, the Department

         22  fulfilled its January Plan targeted reductions for

         23  Fiscal Year 2006, and subsequent years through

         24  increased revenues.

         25                 For the Executive Budget, the
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          2  Department's revenue projections have not changed.

          3  Based on recent and current activity, the Department

          4  is projecting over $1.6 million in Fiscal Year 2006

          5  revenue, and a $250,000 increase from $1.4 million

          6  in Fiscal Year 2005.

          7                 For Fiscal Year 2007, the

          8  Department's budget reflects an implementation of a

          9  fee increase for CEQR and ULURP applications.

         10                 It is projected that revenues will

         11  increase by 225,000 to 1.8 million dollars in Fiscal

         12  Year 2007.

         13                 There is a projected decrease in

         14  revenue for Fiscal Year 2008 and subsequent years,

         15  the decrease represent a potential of downward

         16  economic trend, resulting in a slow-down in

         17  construction activity.

         18                 The additional funding included in

         19  Fiscal Year '07 Executive Budget will help us carry

         20  out our ambitious planning work program. We are

         21  committed to meet the challenges and demands posed

         22  by the City's growing population, and it's complex

         23  Land Use and Zoning Issues.

         24                 We seek your support of the proposed

         25  Executive Budget for Fiscal Year 2007. It will
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          2  enable the Department of City Planning to continue

          3  to realize an agenda vital to the long-term growth

          4  and viability of the City and we look forward to

          5  your continued active participation in the planning

          6  process.

          7                 Thank you, and Richard and I will be

          8  pleased to answer any questions that you may have.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you, Madam

         10  Chair.

         11                 You may recall that my neighborhood

         12  in Holliswood was one of the first neighborhoods to

         13  be downzone and we were very grateful to your

         14  earlier tour of the neighborhood earlier in your

         15  tenure and my tenure, and subsequent to that there

         16  have been, as you mentioned, numerous, numerous

         17  downzonings throughout the City, which I think is

         18  very good. And the cooperation with the local

         19  community and the community input has been good. And

         20  by the way, I think John Young is doing an excellent

         21  job in the Queens office and handling and being

         22  responsible, at least to my office, I'm sure my

         23  colleagues, most of them feel the same way.

         24                 Part of the problem is though, I

         25  guess in the enforcement area, and I think it's more
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          2  aimed at the Buildings Department, because the

          3  Buildings Department I guess has the jurisdiction of

          4  actually enforcing the downzoning; is that correct?

          5                 CHAIR BURDEN: That's right.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: What does your

          7  office do to work with them so some of this

          8  cooperation can effect -- because I know we've had a

          9  number of complaints that even after the

         10  downzonings, that a number of the civic associations

         11  and community groups feel that there were certain

         12  instances, they complained to our office, they

         13  complained to Buildings Department, but of course,

         14  there is always a shortage of personnel.

         15                 What I'm basically asking is, what

         16  can your office do in conjunction with the Buildings

         17  Department to kind of expedite the process of

         18  enforcing all the hard work that your agency had

         19  done, you know, over these many, many months in

         20  downzoning?

         21                 CHAIR BURDEN: I think one of the

         22  first things that we do do is we sit down with

         23  Buildings Department staff and City Planning staff

         24  to have an intensive seminar on exactly what the

         25  regulations of any new rezoning is, so that the
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          2  buildings inspectors are fully informed.

          3                 And do you want to add to that,

          4  Richard?

          5                 It's very important, because

          6  obviously it has to go hand-in-hand.

          7                 MR. BARTH: Right. I would like to add

          8  to that because we've been meeting on a staff basis

          9  how to improve the communication and the transfer of

         10  information on these rezonings from us to the

         11  Buildings Department, and what we're looking at is

         12  creating a database for every property that's being

         13  rezoned, and giving it to the Buildings Department

         14  even before the Council acts on it, so that they can

         15  gear up for their enforcement activities before

         16  their regulations go into effect. So, we are

         17  standardized in that process at City Planning, and

         18  we'll be providing that information on a regular

         19  basis to Buildings Department at different points in

         20  the review process for these downzoning

         21  applications.

         22                 For example, when the Commission

         23  certifies, when it acts and after the Council acts,

         24  because it may change if modifications are made, but

         25  it gives Buildings, it will give buildings a chance
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          2  to be better prepared for the enforcement that

          3  comes, particularly as it relates to applications

          4  that may have been filed, or applications that are

          5  underway where foundations aren't complete.

          6                 So, we're trying to work together

          7  cooperatively to get a much better communication and

          8  to give Buildings what it needs.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: That's very good,

         10  and I think it's important. You have community

         11  outreach, and I know you have participated in a

         12  number of, both you and Buildings Department, in

         13  Town Hall Meetings, I've held and my colleagues have

         14  held, and it gets the message out.

         15                 You may be aware, and I think it's

         16  kind of stopped at least in certain parts of the

         17  City, certain unscrupulous companies that use scare

         18  tactics relating to the downzoning, encouraging

         19  homeowners and particular senior citizens to sell

         20  their homes before the downzoning went into effect.

         21  In most cases a lot of them have already gone into

         22  effect already, and maybe the point moot.

         23                 But I highlighted this in one

         24  particular company, without mentioning his name, and

         25  I think it stopped.
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          2                 I assume your office is aware of

          3  those situations?

          4                 CHAIR BURDEN: Yes. Especially with a

          5  pending rezoning.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: So, I think that

          7  it's important that the word get out to the

          8  community that the rezonings are not intended to

          9  negatively affect homeowners' properties. That's

         10  clearly the opposite plan involved, and obviously

         11  that's not the message some of these unscrupulous

         12  developers or companies are sending out.

         13                 Just one last point, and then I'll

         14  turn it over to Chair Katz.

         15                 We just had Commissioner Tierney here

         16  and I asked him the question about, he actually

         17  generated -- the Landmarks Preservation Commission

         18  has a smaller budget than you do, although your

         19  budget is still relatively small vis-a-vis, you

         20  know, other City agencies, he generates about a

         21  third of his budget in fees that are instituted, and

         22  the fees actually go into the general fund, as I

         23  assume your fees do as well, and I've been arguing

         24  with OMB and with the various agencies, there should

         25  be some correlation between, you know, generating
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          2  revenue, especially in the cases of relatively small

          3  budgets that are in need of additional personnel,

          4  that you should be able to keep some of that

          5  revenue. It doesn't have to be 100 percent, but

          6  currently some form of sharing proposal where you

          7  should be able to use some of that money to hire

          8  additional personnel as needed.

          9                 You know, as you pointed out, you

         10  were grateful for the City Council adding personnel,

         11  it seems to me a valid argument that OMB should

         12  place at least a portion of that revenue that you've

         13  generated back to the agency, rather than this mass

         14  ocean of general fund, where it kind of gets lost;

         15  what are your feelings on that?

         16                 CHAIR BURDEN: We are raising are

         17  fees, CEQR and ULURP fees, as I mentioned, but I

         18  assume it goes into the general fund.

         19                 MR. BARTH: It goes into the general

         20  fund. The Commissioner mentioned that the budget

         21  reflects a fee increase proposal for ULURP and CEQR

         22  applications, and in part, the increase in staff

         23  that's in the Executive Budget is partly a

         24  reflection, not only of our expanded workload, but

         25  also our commitment to look at our fees and raise
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          2  those fees in the coming year.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Well, my question

          4  is, have you had a discussion with OMB about

          5  retaining some of those fee revenues for your agency

          6  since you are under-staffed and relatively modest

          7  budget, to basically provide more personnel possibly

          8  to get involved in some of these activities you

          9  testified to?

         10                 CHAIR BURDEN: I assume you could say

         11  it's fungible funds, but OMB has -- that's why we

         12  raised our fees, because they said if you want to

         13  increase your staffing, you must raise your fees,

         14  have more income. So, that was how it was figured.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: So you've had

         16  those discussions?

         17                 CHAIR BURDEN: Yes. We consider it

         18  City money, so, exactly.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Have you

         20  discussed any kind of percentage, or any kind of

         21  increase based on the increased fees?

         22                 MR. BARTH: Right now I believe the

         23  '07 Executive Budget represents a 15 percent fee

         24  increase for the CEQR and ULURP applications. The

         25  fees were last raised about three and a half years
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          2  ago. So, that is what is reflected in Executive

          3  Budget.

          4                 Our current fees we collect for the

          5  year are about 1.6 million.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: What is their

          7  response, as far as increasing your budget?

          8                 CHAIR BURDEN: That's how we got

          9  additional staffing for the agency, so we got 21 new

         10  positions.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay. I assume

         12  you will continue that discussion as the fee revenue

         13  increases in future fiscal years?

         14                 CHAIR BURDEN: Yes.

         15                 MR. BARTH: We're continuing to have

         16  those discussions about what the fee structure looks

         17  like and how it relates to those staffing as well.

         18                 So, we appreciate your comments.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay, thank you.

         20                 Chair Katz.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Can you just

         22  quickly -- what was the fee before for ULURP and

         23  CEQR; how much are the applications, and how much

         24  are they going to be now?

         25                 MR. BARTH: Well, right now there is
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          2  published a fee schedule based on the size of the

          3  application.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: What percentage,

          5  though, will it be going up?

          6                 MR. BARTH: In the Executive Budget

          7  what's reflected is a 15 percent increase, which is

          8  really based on cost of living increase and some

          9  other changes.

         10                 We are looking at that fee structure

         11  and there may be other changes before it gets aired

         12  publicly, it requires the CAPA process for approval.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: So you expect 15

         14  percent increase brings you up to how much revenue

         15  from there?

         16                 MR. BARTH: 1.8 million.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: 1.8 million.

         18                 Just a few questions about the

         19  employment.

         20                 First of all, you must have done

         21  something very right, since you have such an

         22  increase in the budget. I don't know how many other

         23  agencies went up as much in a percentage in one

         24  year.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: DoITT did.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: DoITT did. Thank

          3  you, Council Member Brewer.

          4                 So, clearly, clearly there shows a

          5  confidence in the agency, and so that's a good

          6  thing.

          7                 You went through a whole bunch of the

          8  different staffing positions very clearly, and I

          9  thank you for that. Can you just go over it

         10  borough-by-borough? How many more staff members,

         11  according to the allocations that you've had, are

         12  going to be in the next fiscal year?

         13                 MR. BARTH: I didn't give you a copy,

         14  but the increases, starting July 1st for six new

         15  planners, and then four additional planners,

         16  starting January 1st. So, ten positions increase for

         17  the Borough Offices.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Okay, there's five

         19  boroughs.

         20                 MR. BARTH: Correct.

         21                 And we're looking generally at two

         22  planners per borough. Although, we are going to, in

         23  the January positions, look at workloads, see where

         24  they're needed the most.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: I just saw in your
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          2  testimony, and this was the confusing part to me,

          3  there were seven positions to increased staffing in

          4  Manhattan, Brooklyn and Queens in some of the

          5  divisions as well, the population divisions and

          6  resources divisions, so that's in addition to the

          7  ten?

          8                 CHAIR BURDEN: And that was the

          9  January Plan.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: The January Plan.

         11  So, moving forward you're having three -- 10.

         12                 MR. BARTH: This is in addition, the

         13  January -- people are already being brought onboard

         14  now, that funding was provided for in the '06

         15  budget.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: So, the upshot of

         17  the 3 million extra or 3.8 million extra, I guess is

         18  two more planners, basically, per borough?

         19                 MR. BARTH: Correct.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: And what were you

         21  able to cover last year when you did the Council

         22  Initiative? What was it, 500,000? Six?

         23                 CHAIR BURDEN: There were six

         24  positions.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: There were six
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          2  positions in all the different boroughs, okay.

          3                 All right, we talked last time about

          4  the notification issues about when there's

          5  rezonings, and I know some of my colleagues were

          6  intricately involved in this and will probably have

          7  further questions, but you talked about it maybe

          8  being cost prohibitive, so I was wondering whether

          9  since the last hearing to now you've done any

         10  research on the cost of it?

         11                 CHAIR BURDEN: Yes. And I went over it

         12  very quickly in my testimony. We have done a lot of

         13  research.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Okay.

         15                 CHAIR BURDEN: A lot of research on

         16  it. And the issues that -- we are eager to sit down

         17  with the Council on it, and there are issues that

         18  relate to applicability, fees, timing, what other

         19  issues, we've got a lot of -- I think those are the

         20  key.

         21                 MR. BARTH: Content.

         22                 CHAIR BURDEN: Content. We have sample

         23  letter, and there are a bunch of issues that are

         24  raised but it's much more complicated than we

         25  thought it would be.
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          2                 MR. BARTH: If it were easy, then it

          3  would have been done already.

          4                 CHAIR BURDEN: So we are eager to sit

          5  down and go through all those issues and come to a

          6  consensus.

          7                 Anything you want to add?

          8                 MR. BARTH: I would just add to that,

          9  we looked at what it would cost, as well.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: That's what I was

         11  asking.

         12                 MR. BARTH: And based on, we looked at

         13  our work program, and how many lots we may certify

         14  in the coming year, and it's down 120,000 lots. So,

         15  based on just first class mail and using a vendor

         16  service to help us do that, it will cost about

         17  $75,000 for a one-year basis.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: A year. 75,000 a

         19  year.

         20                 MR. BARTH: Correct.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: An you're also

         22  assuming, you're also making the assumption that you

         23  send out a separate mailing, right? As opposed to

         24  with the taxes, or the way the Comptroller sends out

         25  notices sometimes in his checks, or using some sort
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          2  of other process to get the notification. You're

          3  determining that on first class mail?

          4                 CHAIR BURDEN: What we costed out was

          5  first class mail, and then a discussion about that.

          6  We are thinking that a pilot program might be a

          7  smart idea to see where the glitches are, but that's

          8  what we'd like to discuss with you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Can you just very

         10  quickly, and then I'll turn it over to my colleague,

         11  can you just go over for me, because I'm a little

         12  unclear on this year after year, the amount of money

         13  spent by the City Planning Department, I guess it

         14  is, as opposed to the Commission, on a regulatory

         15  function of the Department as opposed to the ULURP

         16  process, and the research process that we all go

         17  through together, administration functions like, you

         18  know, the school seat certifications, the curb cuts,

         19  all those things you do that we don't get here at

         20  the Council?

         21                 CHAIR BURDEN: Can you break that out,

         22  Richard?

         23                 It's an interesting question, but I

         24  don't know if we have actually broken it out because

         25  as you know, there's a lot of work other than simply
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          2  the ULURP process.

          3                 MR. BARTH: Right. We actually tried

          4  to get, we had heard, we received a copy of that

          5  question, and it's good to hear from you directly

          6  because now I understand what you're asking.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Right.

          8                 MR. BARTH: So, I can't answer it

          9  specifically today. In terms of just administration

         10  expenses, which is really operations and

         11  administrations, we spend about $900,000 a year in

         12  personal services.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: That's not the

         14  question.

         15                 The question really is, is there a

         16  distinction between the employees that you have that

         17  deal with the research side, the planning side, what

         18  really the Commission would do, and then the

         19  distinction between them, and employees that work on

         20  the regulatory function, like, I don't know, pools,

         21  curb cuts, you know those things, certification

         22  seats, things that you do that we don't get here at

         23  the Council?

         24                 MR. BARTH: Well, there's certain

         25  things, we look at the Land Use Review applications.
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          2  This year we're projecting to have about 580

          3  applications that get filed.

          4                 A quick estimate we did this morning

          5  was about 40 percent of those, 40 to 45 percent, are

          6  certifications and authorizations.

          7                 Now, those, we wouldn't look at

          8  necessarily as administrative, because

          9  authorizations and certifications may require

         10  plauses, design review, things that aren't strictly

         11  administrative.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: All right. If you

         13  could please get those records for me, I would

         14  appreciate it. And also whether or not it's the same

         15  employees.

         16                 I mean, I know you have a whole

         17  regulatory function that you do that the Council

         18  never really gets, and I know that historically year

         19  after year we haven't really asked about it.

         20                 But I would be curious to know how

         21  much of that is the Planning Department's budget and

         22  function.

         23                 MR. BARTH: We don't really split it

         24  up. You know, you alluded to the planners who do

         25  school seat certifications.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: They do the same

          3  thing. There's no distinction in your employment?

          4                 MR. BARTH: We do authorizations or

          5  special permits.

          6                 CHAIR BURDEN: There are whole

          7  different layers of personnel that deal with

          8  technical review and environmental review, and there

          9  are a whole different spectrum of agency, sort of

         10  layers of meticulous review that aren't those

         11  planners, that work with those planners to make sure

         12  the applications are thorough and complete.

         13                 But we'll work with you and your

         14  staff to get you the information that --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Everybody is doing

         16  everything, okay.

         17                 CHAIR BURDEN: Well, to a certain

         18  degree, and then there are some individuals who are

         19  much more technically focused, and are, as I say,

         20  what is called the "technical review division, the

         21  environmental review division," so we'll work with

         22  you to give that information to give a full

         23  spectrum.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: I appreciate it.

         25  Thank you.
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          2                 Councilman Oddo.

          3                 Just so you know, I have Councilman

          4  Oddo, Avella, Gerson, and Koppell.

          5                 Brewer. Councilman. He raised his

          6  hand first. I thought you would probably not mind,

          7  because you're asking the same question. But if you

          8  mind, you can go, Chair. Go ahead.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: Good

         10  afternoon, Commissioner.

         11                 Council Member Oddo and I are going

         12  to ask the same questions, and I'm going to defer to

         13  him in a second.

         14                 Obviously we're very happy to hear

         15  that you're getting additional monies from the

         16  Executive Budget.

         17                 I guess we want to know how this

         18  relates to the money the Council has been giving you

         19  in the past.

         20                 At some point in your testimony you

         21  say that this will build on the Council money. Are

         22  you anticipating, or do you still like to get the

         23  Council money? I mean, can you answer that question?

         24                 CHAIR BURDEN: We would be

         25  extraordinarily grateful. Our workload is
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          2  extraordinary, let me just put it that way. We would

          3  be extraordinarily appreciative of the Council

          4  continuing to help City Planning to handle its

          5  workload.

          6                 Do you want to add to that, Richard,

          7  at all?

          8                 MR. BARTH: I think we picked the word

          9  build on the resources carefully. And certainly in

         10  our discussions with OMB it was our hope that those

         11  Council positions would be baselined well.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: That's all I

         13  needed to hear. I'll pass it over to Council Member

         14  Oddo.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Far be it for me

         16  to get in between Tony Avella and Melinda Katz.

         17  There are safer places in Beruit.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: I thought he was

         19  yielding. I apologize. Go ahead, Councilman.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: If I could just

         21  go back to the initial point made by Chair Weprin

         22  about the training of the building inspectors,

         23  because I think it's a really important point,

         24  because if they're not trained, they negate the work

         25  that you do and we do. And I think next week
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          2  Commissioner Lancaster, when she comes before the

          3  Committee, will testify that they recognize that

          4  essentially the role of building inspectors has

          5  changed from solely focusing on public safety to now

          6  being aware of zoning violations. And they need to,

          7  instead of just looking to make sure the two by

          8  fours are all right, and everything is safe, to see

          9  that there's compliance, because, frankly, the

         10  system gets cheated when they submit plans and the

         11  plan examiners don't catch it, but the system also

         12  gets cheated when they build differently than what

         13  the plans they submitted, and they build outside of

         14  the zoning.

         15                 And I think Commissioner Lancaster,

         16  to her credit, has recognized that. And, so, any

         17  help you can provide in training these folks, who I

         18  frankly think are going to resist some of the

         19  training, because the scope of their jobs is

         20  changed. But any training you could give is

         21  absolutely needed.

         22                 Council Member Avella asked a

         23  question that I wanted to ask, and I'm glad to hear

         24  the response. I'm sure you guys read that there's a

         25  new system in terms of budget initiatives where
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          2  individual Council members have to go around and get

          3  support before we meet as a budget negotiating team,

          4  and we had to go get ten signatures.

          5                 And without breaking any rules, I

          6  would imagine, I got ten signatures. I was the

          7  Council Member carrying it, along with Tony, and we

          8  got ten signatures relatively easily, because I

          9  think, you know, we recognized the workload that we

         10  have given you in addition to private applications,

         11  and I'm glad to hear that you believe that you need

         12  the money and I guess the Chairs have heard that

         13  loud and clearly, so hopefully we can do that.

         14                 The only question I have is if you

         15  can explain in just a little bit more detail with

         16  respect to the 3.35 million and the consultant

         17  services. If you could explain what you mean by the

         18  consultant will help you advance larger and more

         19  complex more Department initiated zoning. If you can

         20  give some more examples or explain that in more

         21  detail, that would be great.

         22                 CHAIR BURDEN: I'll let Richard, but

         23  it's about the large environmental reviews, such as

         24  in Jamaica.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Madam Chair, if you
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          2  could use the mike. We're not getting you.

          3                 CHAIR BURDEN: I'll let Richard, but

          4  that's about the large environmental reviews that we

          5  need to do, such as for a project like Jamaica where

          6  there's an environmental impact, or 125th Street.

          7                 Do you want to add to that at all?

          8                 MR. BARTH: I would add to that that

          9  back in Fiscal Year '03 and also in Fiscal Year '04,

         10  we received money specifically to hire environmental

         11  on-call consultants. And we used that money over the

         12  years to advance projects like Greenpoint,

         13  Williamsburg, West Chelsea, and as the Chair said,

         14  Downtown Jamaica.

         15                 We're now at the end of that money,

         16  and the new money will allow us to pursue other

         17  projects.

         18                 Most of the environmental reviews we

         19  do in-house, but some of the more complex ones are

         20  just given the scheduling we cannot. So, projects

         21  that we could use this money for, we talked about

         22  some of the work in Staten Island, the Town Center

         23  study, Bed Stuy we'll be using a consultant, 125th

         24  Street corridor will probably use a consultant for

         25  the environmental work.
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          2                 So, rezonings, neighborhood studies

          3  out there that we need outside help on.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Councilman Gerson.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Thank you very

          6  much, Madam Chair.

          7                 Madam Chair, good afternoon. I just

          8  want to follow up with these theme of workload, and

          9  I just want to ask you, with the additional proposed

         10  increases from the Council from the Executive

         11  Budget, you feel the Department is enabled to meet

         12  demand reasonably, if you will, in three critical

         13  areas, three I'm sure among many. But I want to ask

         14  you about three, in no particular order.

         15                 But first of all, working with

         16  community boards, working with community boards

         17  especially in the development of community plans,

         18  which as you know Boards like 2 embark on a lot of

         19  that. A lot of the support for that I know is

         20  provided for the Borough President offices, but a

         21  lot of that work could also be abetted by support.

         22                 Is there a request to yield? I'll be

         23  glad to.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: No, she's just

         25  adding to the list. No one is yielding anymore.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Oh, I just saw

          3  a lot of hand motion.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Councilman Gerson.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Should I

          6  continue?

          7                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Please continue.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Thank you,

          9  Madam Chair.

         10                 I think I got my question in. But

         11  working with community boards and community plans

         12  and other community board initiatives, sufficient

         13  staff to meet the demand reasonably. You could

         14  always use more but as a critical area where you

         15  need more, this is the time for you to tell us, and

         16  I'd be interested in knowing these three areas, the

         17  first of which I just mentioned.

         18                 CHAIR BURDEN: We have a dedicated

         19  staff for 197-A plans. They form a very important

         20  part of our workload, and they're very supportive

         21  197-A plans.

         22                 They form the foundation for

         23  community growth and for community feel and vested

         24  in their future.

         25                 As I mentioned, we will meet the

                                                            85

          1  FINANCE, LAND USE AND TECHNOLOGY IN GOVERNMENT

          2  challenges of our workload.  With the Council's

          3  support, we can do that.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Is there like

          5  a subdivision dedicated to 197-A plans?

          6                 CHAIR BURDEN: Yes. Yes, there is.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: And how many

          8  personnel are there?

          9                 CHAIR BURDEN: There, I would say in

         10  that division about three.

         11                 MR. BARTH: Actually, five. They do

         12  some other things as well, but that's their function

         13  --

         14                 CHAIR BURDEN: Planning, coordination.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Five Citywide.

         16                 CHAIR BURDEN: Yes.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: So one per

         18  borough. Okay, but they're not allocated on a

         19  borough basis.

         20                 CHAIR BURDEN: No.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Okay.

         22                 CHAIR BURDEN: They actually work out

         23  of the main office.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Okay. So, the

         25  second of three areas I wanted to ask about, a
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          2  growing demand for City Planning to expand its

          3  analysis, its planning, in areas pertaining to

          4  community facilities, physical infrastructure needs

          5  and community facility needs, schools, community

          6  centers, parks, in order to meet development that

          7  either takes on a variance or order to meet plan

          8  development.

          9                 I'm hearing from my communities, and

         10  I believe properly so, that there is a growing need

         11  for us as a City to do better in situations where

         12  we're promoting development either through variances

         13  or through City land dispositions or through City

         14  plans, to make sure that as we bring on line

         15  standard development than previously anticipated in

         16  areas, we have sufficient schools, sufficient

         17  community support facilities, and do you feel, and I

         18  know some of this is covered by the CEQR process,

         19  but in some cases the need exists where CEQR does

         20  not apply, and in some cases where CEQR does apply

         21  there is a sense of a greater need to improve the

         22  CEQR process, have a better analysis of the CEQR

         23  reviews undertaken; do you feel that you have the

         24  wherewithal, the sufficient resources in-house so if

         25  I were to ask you to tell me if a variance in my
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          2  district is such that there is sufficient classroom

          3  space to meet the anticipated demand you could

          4  answer that question?

          5                 CHAIR BURDEN: Well, about a variance

          6  I'm not quite sure, since that's not under our

          7  umbrella. As you know, it's under another entity's

          8  umbrella. But for rezonings, we look, it all comes

          9  under CEQR review, in a sense that the impact of a

         10  rezoning are taken very -- under careful

         11  consideration, and we do always review whether there

         12  are enough schools, whether there are schools in the

         13  budget, et cetera, each rezoning.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: And you have

         15  sufficient resources to do a full community facility

         16  assessment in all of those rezoning cases that

         17  you're tackling?

         18                 CHAIR BURDEN: It's always

         19  challenging, as Richard mentioned we have over 500

         20  applications that we're reviewing right now, but we

         21  have an extraordinary staff that is very talented

         22  and competent to handle those applications.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: And let me

         24  just ask you about, because I intentionally

         25  mentioned variances, recognizing that the granting
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          2  of the variances comes under, as you pointed out, a

          3  different entity, and there are issues concerning

          4  that which we won't get into here, but the planning

          5  for the impact of such variances, is there a role,

          6  should there be a role, and do you have the

          7  resources for there to be a role on the part of City

          8  Planning to assess the same type of facility needs

          9  in the case of either a land disposition for

         10  development purposes or a significant variance

         11  request?

         12                 CHAIR BURDEN: Well, anything that

         13  comes under City Planning, such as a disposition we

         14  certainly look at. And most of the BSA variances, if

         15  not all of them, are very small incremental

         16  increases.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: There are few

         18  exceptions.

         19                 CHAIR BURDEN: Maybe a few exceptions.

         20                 MR. BARTH: I will just add a couple

         21  of points. As you know, we've got a really great

         22  population census group that does a great job in

         23  looking at population growth where it's occurring

         24  tracking housing permits, and we've also got that

         25  planning coordination group, somebody assigned
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          2  specifically to work with the Department of

          3  Education on school seat projections and looking at

          4  school needs. And we try to bring --

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: So, you're

          6  keeping up. You have enough resources to do the job.

          7                 MR. BARTH: We bring that to bear on

          8  our planning work.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: And the final

         10  area, the final point, neighborhoods, communities,

         11  if you will, in crisis zoning need, there are some

         12  areas where the zoning clearly is outdated.

         13                 Are you going to be able, in the next

         14  fiscal year to push ahead in those areas with the

         15  research planning and analysis proposals?

         16                 I mean, as one example, I mean,

         17  there's been concern from North Tribeca that the

         18  comprehensive planning has kind of lagged a little

         19  bit, and therefore, we're now getting into a

         20  situation where particular variances are getting

         21  ahead of the comprehensive planning process. And

         22  there was a concern of perhaps part of the reason

         23  things didn't go quite as quickly, and this is not a

         24  criticism, but just a concern, which I'm asking

         25  about so we can help you, if need be, that
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          2  resources, or lack of resources within the

          3  Department contributed to delays.

          4                 Again, this is the time for you to

          5  tell us, should we be looking to pump even more into

          6  your Department in order for you to keep up with, if

          7  you will, areas in critical zoning need, or are you

          8  okay?

          9                 CHAIR BURDEN: Well, I'm glad you

         10  brought up Northern Tribeca, because that's exactly

         11  the reason that the comprehensive rezoning for

         12  Tribeca, Northern Tribeca, lag behind. We did not

         13  have a dedicated planner that we had the funding to

         14  staff. Now we do, and we have been working with

         15  community representatives, and we think we have a

         16  pretty good handle on it. But, yes, staff definitely

         17  relates to, and we do have somebody for Northern

         18  Tribeca, but with the Council's support we can

         19  really cover more rezonings that were the areas

         20  where the zoning is way out of date in certain

         21  areas, especially when there is significant pressure

         22  on the existing fabric of a neighborhood. But

         23  Northern Tribeca is in hand, thank goodness, because

         24  we have a planner dedicated to that --

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: And we have
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          2  other adjoining communities which may need to be

          3  brought on line very soon where zoning reaches a

          4  rule rather than compliance, but my purpose now is

          5  not to get into the rezoning, but just the

          6  resources. So, you feel you're okay with what is

          7  proposed?

          8                 CHAIR BURDEN: What I've talked about

          9  in the testimony with the Council's support, yes.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: We'll be able

         11  to get the job done?

         12                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: I would like to

         13  really remind my colleagues, there are seven more

         14  people on the list to ask questions.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: I have

         16  completed.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: We have the DoITT

         18  Commissioner who is waiting to come testify as well.

         19                 If you can really limit your

         20  questions, number one, especially only to budget,

         21  which I know you did, but I'm just reminding

         22  everyone, but also very briefly, that would be

         23  great.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: I'm concluded.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Thank you.
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          2                 Council Member Koppell.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Thank you,

          4  Madam Chair.

          5                 Let me just start by thanking you for

          6  your cooperation. We've had a lot of interaction

          7  with the Commission and with you on rezonings over

          8  the last couple of years. We did Woodlawn recently,

          9  which was the latest, and there still are several

         10  other areas in the district that I know you're

         11  studying, and I think it made a tremendous

         12  difference, and I want to thank you for your

         13  cooperation in all of these matters.

         14                 As you probably will remember, the

         15  single most vexing Land Use issue that faces us in

         16  the areas where we have substantial development,

         17  particularly the Riverdale Kingsbridge area, is

         18  parking.

         19                 And the current zoning rules on

         20  parking are not, in my view, and the view of most

         21  others who have looked at it from our community's

         22  point of view, adequate.

         23                 That is to say new buildings can be

         24  built without having sufficient parking, and in the

         25  communities of Riverdale and Kingsbridge,
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          2  particularly, parking is extremely difficult, and

          3  literally, literally, Madam Chair, literally, and

          4  I'm not kidding, there isn't a day that goes by that

          5  I'm in the district that someone doesn't complain

          6  about parking. Not a day.

          7                 Only this morning, when I was in the

          8  local drug store, the proprietor there said to me,

          9  you know, what are we going to do here? We're

         10  building all these buildings in Riverdale and

         11  there's no parking.

         12                 And some of the developers, frankly,

         13  at least provide one space per unit, but many, or at

         14  least a number, do not. And your rules don't require

         15  it, our rules don't require it.

         16                 And I know you were doing a study, I

         17  believe you were doing a study, and so I would

         18  appreciate, after that little diatribe, I would

         19  appreciate knowing where the study stands and what

         20  we can do to advance this.

         21                 CHAIR BURDEN: This is definitely a

         22  vexing issue.

         23                 Richard, can you give an update of

         24  where we are on the parking study?

         25                 MR. BARTH: We've done considerable
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          2  analysis on a new construction, car ownership, and

          3  how it relates to zoning regulations, in terms of

          4  what's required, and this gives you an -- to give

          5  you an example of one of the needs we have, staffing

          6  needs, that is met in this proposed budget is for

          7  some urban designers. We have to examine as part of

          8  the study if the requirements are raised what are

          9  the implications in terms of the building form, how

         10  does increased parking get accommodated on the lot,

         11  is it feasible to do from an economic perspective?

         12  So, it's not just a question of raising the

         13  requirements in the zones that are in your district,

         14  how does that affect the building form, where should

         15  the parking be located.

         16                 So, there's a lot of issues to look

         17  at. I think later this year we'll be able to get

         18  back to you with more specifics.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Well, you

         20  know, what I would urge on the Chair and on the

         21  Commission is a timetable. Because, frankly, if we

         22  wait much longer, it's going to be somewhat

         23  irrelevant in Riverdale, because every last piece of

         24  property that can be developed, although I'm sure

         25  that the inventiveness of the developers will find
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          2  some new ones. But literally most of the building

          3  has already been done or on the verge of being done.

          4  So, to have an impact, at least in my community,

          5  you've got to do something soon, if you're willing

          6  to do something.

          7                 And I know there are other issues

          8  there, quality issues, and plus the ones you

          9  mentioned, which are all valid issues, but I hope

         10  you would determine a timetable by which you will

         11  have a proposal, or a conclusion that no proposal is

         12  needed done. And then if you have a proposal, then

         13  we can move ahead on it, but right now we don't even

         14  have a proposal.

         15                 CHAIR BURDEN: We'll get back to you

         16  on the time framework.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Thank you.

         18                 CHAIR BURDEN: Thank you, Council

         19  member.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Council Member

         21  Brewer.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Thank you. I

         23  have two questions. One is something that I always

         24  asked DCAS about, which is their store. So, I'm

         25  going to ask you about your store which has
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          2  wonderful maps, et cetera, and I was just wondering

          3  what the revenue is every year. I don't want to

          4  charge more for people, but I always have believed

          5  that if these stores, yours and the City Store were

          6  more visible, you would sell a gazillion dollars

          7  more, and we always need revenue.

          8                 So, I'm just wondering, what is the

          9  revenue now?

         10                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: How do you spell

         11  that? That's a big number.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Gazillion.

         13                 The reason I know is because we have

         14  all your maps in our district office, and people

         15  come in sometimes 40 or 50 a day, asking where to

         16  buy those maps.

         17                 CHAIR BURDEN: Richard has the exact

         18  revenue. One of the first things we did the first

         19  year I got appointed was to completely renovate and

         20  paint our store. And everybody who comes into City

         21  Planning has to pass by the store, so it's very

         22  transparent, it's very bright, there's a counter,

         23  and, so, it can be amenable to the customer. So, it

         24  actually looks pretty good. We do have a very high

         25  number of people who stopped by, and we also on our
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          2  website advertise a lot of the materials to buy on

          3  line, including our Zoning Handbook.

          4                 The revenues from the store?

          5                 MR. BARTH: The revenue estimates, I

          6  can get you a specific figures, is approximately

          7  100,000 from the map sales.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Okay.

          9                 MR. BARTH: Book and map sales. And

         10  that excludes the sale of Zoning Handbook, which was

         11  something unique.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Right.

         13                 And that's open Monday to Friday?

         14                 MR. BARTH: Correct.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Is there ever

         16  any discussion as to more hours or more -- I mean,

         17  you would sell more, obviously, because if you

         18  advertised it more, if it had a more visible

         19  location; that's never been discussed?

         20                 MR. BARTH: Well, we've been talking

         21  to DCAS, and I believe the Zoning Handbook is now

         22  offered on the DCAS website.

         23                 CHAIR BURDEN: Yes, and also in the

         24  City store, as well.

         25                 MR. BARTH: City store is what I
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          2  meant.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Right. But

          4  there's no discussion about more hours or a

          5  different location? Or an additional location?

          6                 CHAIR BURDEN: On Saturdays the foot

          7  traffic is not --

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: But I'm just

          9  saying, I don't want to belabor the point, I believe

         10  that, for instance, where the Duane Reade is, I've

         11  had this discussion, that's where our store should

         12  be, where you should be and where the City Store

         13  should be. Because I think it would set a nice tone

         14  of the City of New York to have these wonderful

         15  items for the public to see seven days a week,

         16  because people don't just shop Monday to Friday.

         17                 CHAIR BURDEN: That's a good thought.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: So keep

         19  pushing it.

         20                 CHAIR BURDEN: Okay.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: I guess it's

         22  DCAS more than you.

         23                 And then I wanted to ask an

         24  additional, you mentioned in your testimony an

         25  additional 100,000 is budgeted for a consultant to
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          2  assist the Department for your Land Use, et cetera.

          3  I'm just wondering how the technology will work?

          4  Let's save money, time; what is the concept behind

          5  it?

          6                 CHAIR BURDEN: I think that's the

          7  intention of it to really modernize and make more

          8  transparent the process.

          9                 Richard has looked at this in more

         10  detail.

         11                 Is there anything you want to say

         12  about that?

         13                 MR. BARTH: Amanda summed it up. We

         14  don't know what the answers will be, but we want to

         15  take a look at the entire Land Use process, see how

         16  we can use technology better, both in terms of being

         17  able to process the applications more visibly, but

         18  equally important, to make the information in the

         19  applications more readily available to other people

         20  in the City, as well as potentially to the public.

         21  So to make the whole process --

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: So people

         23  would actually know where they are in the process.

         24                 MR. BARTH: Exactly.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER: Okay.
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          2                 All right, thank you very much.

          3                 CHAIR BURDEN: Thank you, Council

          4  member.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Council Member

          6  Reyna.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Thank you,

          8  Madam Chair.

          9                 I just wanted to take this

         10  opportunity to ask a question that will lead into

         11  the financing, and I'm happy that we've been able to

         12  assist City Planning in expanding the capacity.

         13                 But in understanding all the legwork

         14  that you have done at least in our tenure,

         15  considering all the rezonings, what is City

         16  Planning's role post rezoning?

         17                 CHAIR BURDEN: After the rezoning is

         18  completed, unless there's any follow-up, and

         19  certainly in Greenpoint Williamsburg we're playing

         20  an active role in the design of the waterfront and

         21  ensuring that it's as evenly accessible as possible.

         22  We don't have a role. It's really working with the

         23  Buildings Department to make sure, as the Council

         24  member's question before, the Buildings Department

         25  is fully trained and knowledgeable of all of the
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          2  aspects of the new zoning. So that is key because

          3  they are the enforcer, and City Planning doesn't

          4  really have a role after the rezoning is adopted.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: And so when you

          6  refer in your testimony as far as the Hudson Yards

          7  Implementation, what does that exactly mean?

          8                 CHAIR BURDEN: I'm glad you asked

          9  about that, because the Administration has placed a

         10  very strong focus on certain projects which have an

         11  implementation component. For instance, the Hudson

         12  Yards is, two elements of the Hudson Yards are going

         13  to be self funded through the incremental increase

         14  in value, the rezoning and that's going to go into a

         15  bond issue, which will fund the extension of the

         16  number seven line, which will begin construction at

         17  the end of the year after the issuing of the bonds,

         18  and the building of parks and open space, which will

         19  create a place, which really would create the value

         20  upon which the rest of the development will depend.

         21  It will create public amenity, create value, create

         22  a sense of place. So, the implementation is both for

         23  the extension of the number 7 line working very

         24  closely with the MTA on all aspects of that.

         25  Building the parks and building the new streets.

                                                            102

          1  FINANCE, LAND USE AND TECHNOLOGY IN GOVERNMENT

          2                 I don't know if you recall, there is

          3  a new boulevard that will go between Tenth and

          4  Eleventh Avenue, so it's a construction of all of

          5  the roads, parks, subway, and --

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Infrastructure.

          7                 CHAIR BURDEN: Yes, infrastructure and

          8  the public open space.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: I'm just

         10  wondering, you know, for the consideration of three

         11  staff members just dedicated to one rezoning with

         12  infrastructure commitments, on a Citywide

         13  perspective, the Greenpoint Williamsburg, for

         14  instance, has all those infrastructure needs and the

         15  implementation of that to see to it that it

         16  completed amongst other rezonings, I'm not

         17  intimately involved with, but I'm imagining that the

         18  same needs are going to be just as important.

         19                 And, so, three staff members

         20  dedicated to Hudson Yards, how does it differ if you

         21  don't see that type of funding for Citywide

         22  rezonings? Is the lack of that funding to dedicate

         23  staff, personal staff members, to see to it these

         24  infrastructure needs are implemented. Are they not

         25  monitored then? How do they work with City Planning?
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          2                 CHAIR BURDEN: Hudson Yards is very

          3  unusual because there is so much funding going into

          4  $2 billion into the subway and millions and millions

          5  of dollars going into the parks.

          6                 Parks Department really is overseeing

          7  the entire Greenpoint Williamsburg Waterfront. That

          8  is really under the Parks Department. We are working

          9  tangentially with them. But they have dedicated

         10  staff looking at that and we assist them but it's

         11  our responsibility to get the planning and the

         12  infrastructure done for the Hudson Yards.

         13                 Do you want to add to that?

         14                 MR. BARTH: The other thing is there

         15  are a number of follow-up actions in Greenpoint

         16  Williamsburg that we're committed to, in terms of

         17  looking to the area of the east for contextual

         18  rezoning, working with HPD on the affordable housing

         19  sites. And the Brooklyn office has actually from its

         20  existing resources dedicated a couple staff people

         21  specifically to that effort.

         22                 CHAIR BURDEN: For follow-up.

         23                 MR. BARTH: But it's within the

         24  funding that we have.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Which was in
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          2  the funding that you have.

          3                 MR. BARTH: Yes.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: So, as of right

          5  now, you don't need any further funding allocations

          6  dedicated to the Brooklyn office to deal with

          7  follow-up corrective actions?

          8                 CHAIR BURDEN: Yes, we are asking for

          9  additional funding for -- we have gotten funding and

         10  we are looking for supplementary funding.

         11                 Do you want to add something?

         12                 MR. BARTH: Just based on the

         13  discussions that we've had this morning, we are

         14  comfortable with the resources that we discussed.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Thank you very

         16  much.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Thank you.

         18                 I'm going to ask Council Member

         19  Jackson and then Council Member Comrie, then we're

         20  going to go to the DoITT Commissioner, if there is

         21  anybody here on his staff.

         22                 He's here. Let's keep in mind the

         23  Commissioner is here.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Thank you,

         25  Madam Chair.
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          2                 Good afternoon. Just a quick

          3  question. I'm looking at your contract budget and

          4  your 47 contracts at $3.7 million. I wanted to know,

          5  how are you in compliance with the new Minority and

          6  Woman-Owned Business Law that was signed into law by

          7  Mayor Bloomberg on December 29th, 2005?

          8                 MR. BARTH: We are in full compliance.

          9  We are working pursuant to those regulations. I can

         10  get you details on how the money has been spent.

         11                 Coming up we have this large one-time

         12  contract, but our kind of day-to-day typical OTPS is

         13  considerably less than that. And I can get you the

         14  specifics on the Minority Business and Women

         15  Enterprise.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: That would be

         17  great.

         18                 MR. BARTH: Okay, we will do that.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: I appreciate

         20  that, because that's one of the questions I've been

         21  asking all agencies with respect to compliance of

         22  that. And you know you have the DBS, the disparate

         23  business legislation that we passed into law also,

         24  in fact, and that's upon us right now, and we want

         25  to make sure that all the agencies and departments
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          2  are at minimally in compliance with the laws that we

          3  passed.

          4                 MR. BARTH: Council member, I just

          5  found the information I was looking for.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Okay. Go

          7  ahead.

          8                 MR. BARTH: And those items that we

          9  don't obtain through the requirements contract, we

         10  solicit MWBE vendors from SBS and Buywise

         11  Bitterless, pursuant to their procurement rules that

         12  include these requirements.

         13                 And just to give you an example, we

         14  did last year 200 computer-related purchases valued

         15  at just over $1 million. And although some of these

         16  was obtained using some of our existing contracts,

         17  nearly 60 percent of the vendors were minority and

         18  women business owned.

         19                 So, we are following the guidelines

         20  and making an effort to comply both to the spirit

         21  and the law itself.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: And you said

         23  that was last year; is that correct?

         24                 MR. BARTH: Correct.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: And you said
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          2  your contract budget was about, was it 3.7 mil? For

          3  Fiscal Year 2007, you say you planned to let 47

          4  contracts at 3.7, what was it last year?

          5                 MR. BARTH: Okay, I will get you that

          6  information.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Okay.

          8                 MR. BARTH: I don't have that readily

          9  available today.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: But in

         11  essence what you're telling me and everyone here is

         12  that in compliance with the minority and woman-owned

         13  business law that was passed, you were well

         14  exceeding what the minimum goals would be?

         15                 MR. BARTH: Well, I gave you an

         16  example of how we did on those specific

         17  computer-related purchases. We will get you

         18  additional detail on last year and what we expect

         19  going forward.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: I appreciate.

         21                 Thank you very much.

         22                 CHAIR BURDEN: Thank you, Council

         23  member.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Thank you.

         25                 Council Member Comrie.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Thank you,

          3  Madam Chair.

          4                 Good afternoon, Commissioner.

          5                 CHAIR BURDEN: Good afternoon, Council

          6  member.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: I just want to

          8  take the opportunity to thank you for your effort

          9  and the work that's being undertaken for both the

         10  downtown Jamaica rezoning and the Hollis St. Albans

         11  Jamaica rezoning. And just to thank you, John Young

         12  and Debbie Carney and Rob Holbert have been stalwart

         13  employees and have worked tirelessly on those plans,

         14  I'd just like to see them come to fruition as soon

         15  as possible, because the need is great in that area

         16  for both upgrade and improvement and also protection

         17  of the residential properties.

         18                 So, I see in your testimony where

         19  you're adding 21 members and 21 people on this

         20  staff, and can you let us know how many of those

         21  positions are plan examiners? You don't say who they

         22  are.

         23                 You talked about information and

         24  technology. Oh, I'm sorry, you've got four urban

         25  designers, and one for zoning, one for the urban,
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          2  for the information technology division, so out of

          3  those 21 positions, we're getting four additional

          4  urban designers? What is that, one for each borough?

          5                 MR. BARTH: It's roughly two planners

          6  for each borough and the urban designers will be

          7  located at 22 Reade Street.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay.

          9                 MR. BARTH: But the thinking there is

         10  that they will be able, when there is a need to be

         11  assigned on any project in any borough where there

         12  is a need.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Well, Queens

         14  will be able to look forward to two additional plan

         15  examiners?

         16                 CHAIR BURDEN: Yes.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: That's good to

         18  know, because as you know, in Queens there are about

         19  20 different requests for rezonings and efforts to

         20  look at rezonings.

         21                 Have you requested or started to

         22  think about, since so many communities are

         23  requesting planners, community boards are requesting

         24  planners, the fact of adding to the budget overall?

         25                 CHAIR BURDEN: You mean community
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          2  boards are requesting planners themselves?

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Right.

          4  Community boards and people that are looking to do

          5  rezoning, the civic groups or community boards,

          6  which I'm sure, as you know, you've been inundated

          7  with requests.

          8                 And also, you know, I've been reading

          9  that this City expects to have additional million

         10  people in the City in the next -- I didn't see what

         11  the time line was.

         12                 CHAIR BURDEN: Fifteen years.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Fifteen?

         14                 CHAIR BURDEN: Yes.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: So, has City

         16  Planning started to factor that into their overall

         17  budget, since that's going to require probably

         18  relooking at every neighborhood again, to look at

         19  density and usage?

         20                 CHAIR BURDEN: Yes, Council member,

         21  that is part of the strategy that we're working on

         22  with the Deputy Mayor's Office as well, because we

         23  have to plan not only about where we can

         24  appropriately channel growth, where the right place

         25  is for the City to grow, at the same time, which
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          2  neighborhoods that are under a lot of development

          3  pressure, we need to protect, at the same time

          4  looking at our transportation infrastructure to make

          5  sure that we have good mobility in the City.

          6                 We're looking at many issues related

          7  to our population growth.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: And then,

          9  finally, over the last few years, I know Council

         10  Member Oddo and myself have been champion to

         11  increase money to City Planning so that you can hire

         12  additional personnel, so, you will be able to then

         13  increase your hiring, if we do the money again, and

         14  how do you find your people to ramp up that quickly?

         15                 Do you have a wealth of applicants

         16  knocking at your door that you can be up and running

         17  quickly?

         18                 CHAIR BURDEN: I was mentioning

         19  earlier, we are extraordinarily appreciative of the

         20  Council providing that additional funding.

         21                 We do have a tremendous demand from

         22  communities for additional rezonings, and we do have

         23  significant number of application of talented

         24  candidates become planners on the City Planning

         25  office.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Thank you.

          3                 CHAIR BURDEN: Thank you.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Again, I want

          5  to thank you for your support and your

          6  responsiveness to my community. I want to encourage

          7  you and hope that you have all the resources so we

          8  can get both rezonings done by the fall, if

          9  possible.

         10                 Thank you.

         11                 CHAIR BURDEN: Thank you, Council

         12  member. Nice to see you.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Before we finalize,

         15  I just want to tag onto what Council Member Reyna

         16  was saying. I think that that was a very good

         17  observation of hers. As far as the funding goes for

         18  after we do the rezonings, and it's similar to what

         19  I was talking about, which is that once you have the

         20  rezonings and once everything is done through us,

         21  you guys at City Planning still have a sufficient,

         22  and clearly an expanded amount of work that you're

         23  doing, which historically my understanding of City

         24  Planning and Land Use really had ended at the Land

         25  Use Committee and with the City Council, and then it
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          2  would really go on to the Buildings Department to

          3  enforce and things of that nature.

          4                 So, I think that what the Council

          5  member is asking is a good observation, which is

          6  that I'd like to know at some point in the next few

          7  weeks what percentage of that budget is spent on,

          8  not only the follow up stuff, Hudson Yards,

          9  especially, I guess, but also all over the City

         10  because there has to be follow-up issues.

         11                 Second, again, the regulatory

         12  functions that don't include us, and, you know, we

         13  know the list and you know the list of things that

         14  you're doing that doesn't include us, and I assume

         15  that part of the stuff, like Hudson Yards, would be

         16  included in that.

         17                 That would be very helpful so that we

         18  can get a read on it.

         19                 CHAIR BURDEN: Okay. We'd be delighted

         20  to do that.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Thank you. And we

         22  thank you for coming and your time today and

         23  appreciate that you stayed an extended amount of

         24  time. I thank you.

         25                 CHAIR BURDEN: Thank you all.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Good-bye, Richard.

          3  Thank you very much.

          4                 MR. BARTH: Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: The DoITT

          6  Commissioner is waiting to testify. So, we will

          7  begin.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: We are now going

          9  to be Co-chair with Finance, Land Use, and the

         10  Committee on Information, Technology and

         11  Telecommunications, chaired by Council Member Gale

         12  Brewer. And I believe Council Member Gale Brewer has

         13  an opening statement.

         14                 The Land Use Committee chaired by

         15  Melinda Katz, and the Committee on Information and

         16  Technology chaired by Gale Brewer, and I believe

         17  Chair Brewer has an opening statement.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: I will be very

         19  brief. I will always welcome Ron Bergmann and DoITT,

         20  and thank the two chairs of our Committees where

         21  we're talking today about technology in the City of

         22  New York and its budget.

         23                 I also want to thank DoITT and the

         24  Commissioner for working with us with the community

         25  boards to make sure that in the near future 3-1-1
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          2  data will be available, and I appreciate that.

          3                 I also want to thank you for, as an

          4  agency working with us on our broadband initiative.

          5  These are not budget issues per se, but certainly

          6  policy for the betterment of New York.

          7                 I know that today we'll be talking

          8  about your budget which has increased a great deal,

          9  because you have great needs, maybe 107 percent over

         10  the last year, and we will also be talking about

         11  some issues like 3-1-1 expansion to serve other

         12  kinds of issues and clients.

         13                 I just want to mention that to your

         14  credit you've been working to try to make sure that

         15  everybody who is working in the 3-1-1 data area is a

         16  City worker, and I can tell you that I appreciate

         17  that, I know the union does.

         18                 We'll be talking about poll tops, TV

         19  and radio stations, initiatives with places like the

         20  Department of Business Services, GIS, Geographic

         21  Information Services, integration services, and of

         22  course, the topic that I know is of tremendous

         23  concern, which is public safety, and how technology

         24  can enhance that.

         25                 So, I look forward to the discussion,
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          2  and appreciate the fact that you're always

          3  available.

          4                 Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Proceed.

          6                 ACTING COMMISSIONER BERGMANN: Thank

          7  you. Good afternoon, Chairpersons Brewer, Katz and

          8  Weprin, and members of the City Council Committees

          9  on Technology and Government, Land Use and Finance.

         10                 My name is Ron Bergmann, and I am

         11  Acting Commissioner for the Department of

         12  Information, Technology and Telecommunications.

         13                 With me today is Margery Brown,

         14  Deputy Commissioner for Finance and Administration.

         15  I am here today to review DoITT's Fiscal 2007

         16  Executive Budget and to answer any questions you may

         17  have.

         18                 This year, we anticipate spending

         19  approximately $236 million to achieve our mission of

         20  providing technology and telecommunication services

         21  to City agencies and to the citizens of New York.

         22                 Next year we anticipate our

         23  expenditures to be increased over 300 million.

         24  Forty-two million of the increase is attributable to

         25  the emergency communication project, which I will
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          2  describe later.

          3                 The other notable elements of this

          4  increase are additional staff, both for the enhanced

          5  3-1-1 initiative and to support our major

          6  initiatives described below, hardware, software and

          7  support costs associated with capital projects,

          8  including the Citywide mobile wireless network and

          9  lease costs resulting from an expansion of the 3-1-1

         10  citizen service center and broadcast

         11  transmission-related lease costs at the Empire State

         12  Building.

         13                 I would first like to describe our

         14  efforts regarding the enhanced 3-1-1 initiative. As

         15  I mentioned in my testimony in March, it is our goal

         16  to leverage the infrastructure of the 3-1-1 citizen

         17  service center to provide a more comprehensive human

         18  services information and referral or INR system.

         19                 The 3-1-1 operating budget will

         20  increase by 1.6 million in Fiscal 2007 to support

         21  the personnel expense required for the first phase

         22  of this initiative.

         23                 In addition, the capital budget

         24  includes 40 million over the next three years for

         25  this important project.
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          2                 Under the leadership of Deputy Mayor

          3  Gibbs, and in conjunction with the City's Human

          4  Services Agencies, we are planning for the

          5  enhancement of the current 3-1-1 environment,

          6  including the build-out of more robust telephony to

          7  support the increased capacity and modified

          8  operations required.

          9                 We will also be reviewing required

         10  software applications and conducting business

         11  process analysis for City agencies and

         12  not-for-profit service providers.

         13                 Earlier this month, Deputy Mayor

         14  Gibbs hosted the first INR governance committee

         15  meeting with City Health and Human Service agencies,

         16  the United Way of New York City, and other

         17  community-based organizations.

         18                 This group is committed to meeting on

         19  a regular basis with the next meeting scheduled for

         20  the end of this month.

         21                 As with 3-1-1, we will be

         22  implementing enhanced 3-1-1 in stages, with the

         23  first phase to launch during Fiscal 2007.

         24                 By the end of 2006, the Department

         25  for the Aging's call center, which currently
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          2  provides INR services, will be consolidated into

          3  3-1-1. This consolidation will ensure

          4  round-the-clock access for callers requiring DFTA

          5  information and services.

          6                 The consolidation will also support

          7  the launch of DFTA's newly-redesigned website,

          8  featuring a senior services quick launch module, as

          9  well as an events calendar and customized e-mail

         10  news registration.

         11                 I would now like to implement you on

         12  the status of our implementation of Local Law 47 of

         13  2005.

         14                 As you know, this law requires DoITT

         15  to issue monthly reports to the City Council

         16  Speaker, the Public Advocate, the Community Boards,

         17  regarding data on directory assistance calls, and

         18  agency service requests, collected by 3-1-1.

         19                 The first of these reports will be

         20  posted on NYC.GOV in early June.

         21                 In late March, along with Council

         22  Member Brewer, we conducted a meeting with

         23  representatives from community boards, the City

         24  Council and Borough Presidents to discuss the format

         25  and content of the reports to obtain feedback.
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          2                 This meeting provided insight into

          3  the needs of community boards, as well as 3-1-1's

          4  capabilities with respect to those needs.

          5                 We look forward to a continued

          6  dialogue with the City Council and community boards

          7  as the reports evolve.

          8                 Our analytics project when complete

          9  will further aid in the preparation of Local Law 47

         10  reports.

         11                 This project will provide

         12  participating City agencies with enhanced tools for

         13  reviewing data from the 3-1-1 customer service

         14  management system, enabling them to better analyze

         15  and respond to service requests.

         16                 On May 3rd I was pleased to join the

         17  Commissioner of the Department of Health and Mental

         18  Hygiene, Tom Frieden, at 3-1-1, to launch an

         19  initiative to provide free nicotine replacement

         20  therapy patches to smokers Citywide who want to

         21  quit.

         22                 During the first two weeks of this

         23  program, 3-1-1 has handled approximately 35,000

         24  calls regarding the patches, with nearly 35,000 New

         25  Yorkers having been determined eligible for the kits
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          2  to date.

          3                 I would next like to update you on

          4  the emergency communications transformation

          5  projects.

          6                 As you know, ECTP is a multi-year,

          7  multi-agency initiative, which will improve

          8  virtually all aspects of the City's 9-1-1 system.

          9  From the phone lines that carry 9-1-1 calls to the

         10  facilities where those calls were handled, to the

         11  communication systems that first responders use to

         12  get to the scene of an emergency.

         13                 To date, we have registered contracts

         14  totalling over $500 million for construction,

         15  systems integration and quality assurance services,

         16  and have paid out approximately $80 million to

         17  vendors.

         18                 Since our discussion of this project

         19  in March, progress has been made in the following

         20  areas:

         21                 Construction at the existing Public

         22  Safety Answering Center or PSAC, is scheduled for

         23  completion this summer. This facility will serve as

         24  the primary call-taking environment for the City's

         25  emergency responders.
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          2                 Once construction is complete, there

          3  will be a six-month period to configure the facility

          4  with key systems and support infrastructure.

          5                 This will include the installation of

          6  consoles and the integration and testing of computer

          7  and radio systems.

          8                 Another critical area of ECTP relates

          9  to the upgrade and replacement of the City's 9-1-1

         10  telephone network. This initiative will provide the

         11  City with the infrastructure required to operate at

         12  PSAC and provide for the replacement of end-of-life

         13  technical equipment.

         14                 After extensive and complex contract

         15  negotiations, we are now in the final stages of

         16  addressing the remaining issues and anticipate work

         17  to commence this summer.

         18                 The implementation of automatic

         19  vehicle location technology and ambulances is

         20  ongoing, with all New York City ambulances and Fire

         21  Department apparatus to be equipped with AVL.

         22                 AVL utilizes global-positioning

         23  satellite, or GPS technology, to track the real time

         24  movement of vehicles, helping dispatchers to more

         25  accurately deploy appropriate emergency resources.
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          2                 AVL began in September 2005 as a

          3  pilot program with emergency medical services units

          4  on Staten Island and in Southern Brooklyn.

          5                 Under the system, the average EMS

          6  response time to the most serious medical

          7  emergencies was reduced by 33 seconds.

          8                 By June 30th, all City ambulances

          9  participating in the 9-1-1 system will be fully

         10  equipped with AVL.

         11                 Implementation of the system and fire

         12  apparatus will be completed by the end of the

         13  summer.

         14                 In total more than 1,500 Fire and EMS

         15  vehicles throughout the City will be equipped with

         16  AVL at a cost of nearly $50 million.

         17                 On May 9th, the Mayor announced a

         18  pilot program to test wireless technologies for the

         19  creation of a high speed wireless data network for

         20  emergency responders and field personnel.

         21                 This Citywide mobile wireless network

         22  will enable police and fire personnel to quickly

         23  access and download information, including City

         24  maps, building plans and federal and state crime

         25  databases from police vehicles and Fire and EMS
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          2  apparatus.

          3                 In addition, other City agencies will

          4  be able to use the network for improved traffic

          5  management, for example, as well as for safety

          6  inspections and other maintenance activities in the

          7  fields.

          8                 The two vendors under consideration

          9  have completed the installation of test networks in

         10  Lower Manhattan, and will be conducting 12-week

         11  head-to-head demonstrations.

         12                 The competing solutions will then be

         13  evaluated, the solution that best meets the City's

         14  needs considered for Citywide implementation.

         15                 Each contract provides for pilot

         16  phase to test the technology and a second phase,

         17  implemented at the City's discretion, to build out

         18  the Citywide network.

         19                 The cost of the pilot program is 2.7

         20  million, and should the City choose to implement one

         21  of the solutions, the estimated cost will be 500

         22  million, the five-year cost at building and

         23  maintaining a Citywide network.

         24                 If the City determines that it

         25  intends to proceed with one of the proposed
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          2  solutions, then that contract will continue and the

          3  second vendor's contract will be cancelled. If the

          4  City determines that it does not intend to proceed

          5  with either solution, both contracts will be

          6  cancelled and DoITT will evaluate alternative

          7  technical solutions.

          8                 Since my testimony on the preliminary

          9  budget, the first release of the integrated justice

         10  project, which replaced a legacy mainframe-based

         11  environment with a new middle-ware messaging

         12  architecture has been completed.

         13                 In late March we successfully

         14  launched DataShare 2.0, connecting 17 participating

         15  agencies, 15 criminal justice agencies, along with

         16  the Criminal Justice Coordinator and DoITT to the

         17  City's data integration environment.

         18                 Now interconnected through a central

         19  hub, these agencies can share more information

         20  faster than ever without compromising security.

         21                 The development and deployment of

         22  DataShare 2.0 was a step towards the next release of

         23  the integrated justice project, launch of the New

         24  York City Public Safety portal.

         25                 When implemented later this year,
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          2  participating agencies will have a fast and secure

          3  access to essential criminal justice business

          4  functions, such as Police Department arrest

          5  information, and Department of Corrections inmate

          6  release notifications.

          7                 The infrastructure and functionality

          8  delivered by this tool, could also be leveraged by

          9  other City agencies for their data integration

         10  needs.

         11                 The integrated human services system

         12  will be making its public debut in NYC.GOV this

         13  summer as ACCESS NYC. The launch of ACCESS NYC will

         14  mark the first time the public will be able to

         15  prescreen for 20 programs across eight Human Service

         16  agencies in a single consolidated manner.

         17                 As we continue to develop ACCESS NYC,

         18  users will be able to populate a subset of

         19  applications, as well as easily locate nearby agency

         20  offices.

         21                 Another project I would like to

         22  update you on, Business Express. Along with the

         23  Department of Small Business Services and several

         24  other City agencies, we are designing Business

         25  Express to serve as a one-stop shop for small
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          2  businesses when they interact with government.

          3                 Phase 1 of Business Express, which is

          4  scheduled to launch for a subset of business sectors

          5  by the end of 2006, will provide a central location

          6  on NYC.GOV where business owners will be able to

          7  navigate for permits and licenses, and obtain

          8  information regarding incentives that may be

          9  available.

         10                 Going forward, we are seeking to

         11  provide a portal on NYC.GOV for businesses to manage

         12  their transactions with City agencies, expedite the

         13  processing and payment for City and State permits,

         14  and induce database maintenance across City

         15  agencies.

         16                 We are committed to ensuring that

         17  access to government services and information for

         18  our citizens is world class.

         19                 Last month, in a study from the

         20  websites of 100 major cities from across the globe,

         21  researchers from Rutgers University and Sungkyunkwan

         22  University, in the Republic of Korea, ranked NYC.GOV

         23  as the best in the world in terms of usability.

         24                 The study, co-sponsored by the United

         25  Nations and the American Society for Public
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          2  Administration, also ranked New York City's website

          3  second, in terms of digital governance, defined as

          4  the degree to which a website enhances the ability

          5  to learn about and participate in government

          6  affairs.

          7                 Evaluating the official City websites

          8  in their native languages, the study applied 98

          9  measures across five central areas: security and

         10  privacy, usability, content, services, and

         11  participation.

         12                 ACCESS NYC and Business Express are

         13  two more examples of the role NYC.GOV plays as an

         14  important resource for residents, businesses, and

         15  visitors alike.

         16                 In closing, I have some exciting

         17  developments to share with you regarding NYC TV, our

         18  Emmy-award winning network. NYC TV is partnered with

         19  the Department of Parks and Recreation to launch

         20  It's My Park, a program showcasing the City's many

         21  beautiful parks and green areas, along with all the

         22  special events and activities that residents and

         23  visitors can take advantage of this summer.

         24                 In addition, I am pleased to announce

         25  that beginning on June 12th, NYC TV Channel 74 is
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          2  revamping its coverage of the City Council with a

          3  show called The Council (formerly known as Council

          4  51). Channel 74 will continue to provide 46 hours of

          5  hearings each week, and the schedule for airing

          6  hearings will be posted on the NYC TV website. The

          7  program will also have new, contemporary graphics,

          8  improving the overall viewing experience.

          9                 I hope that followers of the Council,

         10  and I include myself among them, will enjoy the new

         11  format.

         12                 Thank you, again, for the opportunity

         13  to appear before you today. We would now be pleased

         14  to respond to any questions you may have.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Yes, thank you,

         16  Commissioner.

         17                 I'm sure you're aware of in the City

         18  Council's response we included a request for

         19  additional money to upgrade the 3-1-1 specifically

         20  in the education area to provide the expertise

         21  that's currently lacking, and I know the Speaker and

         22  the Mayor and the Finance staff and OMB have had

         23  some discussions along those lines. Can you give us

         24  an update as to what's proceeding with that, and how

         25  you envision it?
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          2                 ACTING COMMISSIONER BERGMANN: Sure.

          3  We had the opportunity to provide the Speaker with

          4  the tour of 3-1-1 this week, and we discussed her

          5  proposal with regard to education and we decided

          6  that we would have further conversations about it to

          7  begin to see how that proposal can fit within the

          8  enhanced 3-1-1 initiative.

          9                 I think it is a challenge and

         10  something like we feel we can work towards with the

         11  Council.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: So, it's

         13  something that you see yourself supporting?

         14                 ACTING COMMISSIONER BERGMANN: We need

         15  to discuss the specifics, but we are moving in the

         16  direction of increased information referral across

         17  City human services agencies, and we are already

         18  taking calls at 3-1-1 with regard to education

         19  issues.

         20                 So, there are particular needs I

         21  think that the Speaker has in mind, and we need to

         22  meet with her staff to go over them in more detail,

         23  and that's the next step.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay. Was there

         25  any specific discussion or trying to get a handle on
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          2  the amount of money that would actually be needed?

          3  Because I know there were some discrepancies as to

          4  the actual amount that were taken. I'm not sure

          5  there was a definitive figure.

          6                 ACTING COMMISSIONER BERGMANN: No,

          7  there was no specific discussion about dollars.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Do you have any

          9  idea of the range in order to accomplish this goal

         10  at my cost?

         11                 ACTING COMMISSIONER BERGMANN: Well,

         12  in my testimony we spoke to the money that's already

         13  included for enhanced 3-1-1.

         14                 I should emphasize that as with the

         15  launch of 3-1-1, we are taking this in phases, so

         16  we're going to be incorporating, for example,

         17  Department for the Aging's call center, and we will

         18  work with education and all of the human services

         19  agencies and begin to analyze business processes and

         20  better understand what kinds of issues need to be

         21  responded to so that we can meet the needs of New

         22  Yorkers.

         23                 But this is something that's going to

         24  require more detailed conversations.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay. Well, I
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          2  look forward to working with you, you know, and the

          3  Finance staff, with your staff, on working out some

          4  of these details.

          5                 ACTING COMMISSIONER BERGMANN: We are

          6  too.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: I'm going to turn

          8  it over to Chair Katz.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Thank you,

         10  Commissioner.

         11                 I guess my first question would be, I

         12  know you're Acting Commissioner, is there a time

         13  frame on when the Mayor will make a final decision

         14  on a Commissioner?

         15                 ACTING COMMISSIONER BERGMANN: There

         16  is no specific time frame, but I can tell you that I

         17  think progress is being made since I last was here

         18  in March, and we hope to be able to brief you on

         19  further development soon.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: You mentioned $500

         21  million of registered contracts that have already

         22  been let. I know we can get them from the

         23  Comptroller. I assume that that's part of the $1.3

         24  billion that was allocated by the Council. Is there

         25  a way for you to get us the registered contracts? We
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          2  appreciate that. It's public. It's just easier to

          3  get it from you sometimes than it is from going

          4  through the process there. That would be great.

          5                 Can you go through, you and I had a

          6  discussion on 2-1-1, and what part of the budget is

          7  allocated for this new 2-1-1 hot line that the feds

          8  are trying to push as a nationwide initiative? Can

          9  you just very briefly tell the members what the

         10  2-1-1 Initiative is and how much is being allocated

         11  in order to train folks to better answer those

         12  questions?

         13                 ACTING COMMISSIONER BERGMANN: Sure, I

         14  could speak about 2-1-1, and the intent of 2-1-1

         15  across many jurisdictions, and I'll ask Margery to

         16  speak to the specific budget issues.

         17                 2-1-1 is an initiative across many

         18  areas of the country, and that number has been

         19  reserved for human services information for all type

         20  calls.

         21                 Many parts of the country do not have

         22  a 3-1-1 but they do have 2-1-1. Many parts of the

         23  country also have services that are provided

         24  primarily by community-based organizations as to

         25  government entities.
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          2                 So, we are using many of the 2-1-1

          3  approaches, for example, common data definitions for

          4  how to consider a case, and the taxonomy for 2-1-1,

          5  and going to be incorporating that into 3-1-1.

          6                 Our perspective, and working with

          7  community-based organizations, our view is that we

          8  have one number in New York City for citizens to

          9  call and that is 3-1-1.

         10                 The idea here is to build out an

         11  extension to 3-1-1 that allows for specialists to

         12  handle health and human services calls, in addition

         13  to the calls that we normally get around things like

         14  potholes and other kinds of things that citizens

         15  call about.

         16                 However, I should add that we're

         17  already taking probably about 20 percent of calls to

         18  3-1-1 are in the Health and Human Services area, so

         19  we're going to go deeper into that and work with

         20  agencies, service agencies, as well as

         21  not-for-profits in the City, to extend our ability

         22  to provide information referral to New Yorkers.

         23                 So, Marge can speak to some of the

         24  budget issues on that.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: My understanding is
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          2  it's an actual $1.63 million in expense for it,

          3  right? And how much more capital?

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BROWN: Forty

          5  million.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Forty million

          7  dollars capital.

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BROWN: Fifteen

          9  million in '07/'08 and ten in '09.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Fifteen in the

         11  first fiscal year?

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BROWN: Fifty

         13  million each and then ten in the final.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: All right, just so

         15  my colleagues, 2-1-1 is nationwide. It's a push by

         16  the feds in order to have human resources available

         17  to constituents as they call. One thing I found out

         18  last week, which I did not know before, is that

         19  every number apparently is allocated, 3-1-1, 2-1-1,

         20  5-1-1, six -- you know, anyway, which I had not

         21  realized. But apparently in New York City 3-1-1

         22  would be available for both, but if you called

         23  2-1-1, it is their desire that you also get the same

         24  services as you would for 3-1-1, since it is a

         25  nationwide initiative.
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          2                 Can you give us the updates on PSAC

          3  II, and anything you can tell us about site

          4  selection and where we are in using the finances and

          5  the money that was allocated for that?

          6                 ACTING COMMISSIONER BERGMANN: Sure.

          7  What I can tell you is negotiations with the

          8  landlord are ongoing. They're being led by

          9  Department of Citywide Administrative Services, and

         10  progress has been made.

         11                 However, the procurement isn't

         12  finalized.  Until a lease is signed, there's not

         13  much else I could tell you about locations.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: How much of the

         15  capital did you use in this Fiscal Year?

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BROWN: This year,

         17  assuming a number of contracts that are currently

         18  being negotiated and we hope to have registered by

         19  the beginning of -- the end of the fiscal year, we

         20  anticipate that we'll spend 206 million.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: And how much for

         22  next fiscal year were you allocated?

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BROWN: The budget

         24  is currently 505 million.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Do you expect to
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          2  use all of that in the next fiscal year? Not that we

          3  don't like to keep putting the money in.

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BROWN: If we are

          5  able to keep the aggressive time frame on two major

          6  things, which is the implementation of the E 9-1-1

          7  network and PSAC II, then it is a possibility that

          8  we will actually spend that money.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: All right.

         10                 We would appreciate, as soon as you

         11  feel comfortable making it public, you and I have

         12  had this discussion, you know how we feel about

         13  that, we would appreciate knowing the site

         14  selections. But also, just to remind you, it has to

         15  go through Land Use.

         16                 ACTING COMMISSIONER BERGMANN: We

         17  understand, and we'll do that.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Thank you very

         19  much.

         20                 Council Member Brewer.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Thank you very

         22  much.

         23                 On the 2-1-1, you know, I sat on the

         24  Advisory Board, so I'm familiar with the program and

         25  I support it. How is the, is it going to be United
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          2  Way, or is it going to be bid out in terms of who is

          3  going to provide, I don't know what you would call

          4  it, the coalescing of all of the non-profits,

          5  because that's a very challenging process.

          6                 ACTING COMMISSIONER BERGMANN: Right.

          7  We haven't made a final determination on that yet.

          8                 We are having internal meetings. We

          9  are meeting with United Way as well. I think what's

         10  important to note here is that our procurement

         11  process has to ensure a level of competitive playing

         12  field, so that's a consideration that will be

         13  attended to as we go forward with the procurement.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: So, in other

         15  words, whoever is successful in procuring would do

         16  what I sort of suggest, which is to bring the groups

         17  together to figure out who would be the responsible

         18  party for the appropriate human service; is that

         19  what their role would be?

         20                 ACTING COMMISSIONER BERGMANN: We're

         21  moving in that direction, but we haven't finalized

         22  our procurement or procurement strategy yet, so

         23  we're working on that now.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Okay.

         25                 And just in terms of the broadband
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          2  wireless network for public safety, I think you

          3  mentioned, but it was in the paper, a Motorola and

          4  Northorp I think are the two companies.

          5                 ACTING COMMISSIONER BERGMANN: Yes.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: What's the timing

          7  on that? In other words, obviously you talked about

          8  one of them will be selected, or none of the above

          9  will be selected, what's the timing?

         10                 ACTING COMMISSIONER BERGMANN: The two

         11  companies have completed the build-out of their test

         12  network, and are now going through a 12-week

         13  competition essentially where there is testing going

         14  on. The testing is a very complex set of criteria

         15  with regard to the test plan that's been developed.

         16  It includes live testing in the field. It includes

         17  laboratory bench testing of equipment, and that is

         18  happening now as we speak. It should be concluded

         19  some time towards the end of the summer at which

         20  time we're going to have an evaluation that's very

         21  detailed and thorough to determine how we will

         22  proceed.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Will that include

         24  like wireless call boxes, not to mention all the, I

         25  call them GPS, GIS types of public, first responder,
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          2  but would it include wireless call boxes, too? Or it

          3  would depend on what the pilot, the piloter

          4  determines is appropriate?

          5                 ACTING COMMISSIONER BERGMANN: The

          6  pilot testing in the field is designed to essential

          7  recreate a critical incident that has multiple

          8  agencies responding so they can test the network. I

          9  am not sure, and we'll get back to you, with regard

         10  to if wireless call boxes were a part of that test

         11  or not.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: How does,

         13  although I think I may understand this, how does

         14  Citywide broadband wireless network correlate with

         15  the work you're doing on the ECTP, which of course

         16  is also emergency-related?

         17                 ACTING COMMISSIONER BERGMANN: Right.

         18  Well, it's an essential part of delivering

         19  information in real time to the people who need it.

         20  And I was just corrected by Margery, that wireless

         21  call boxes are in fact included.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Included.

         23                 In terms of the Pole Top franchise,

         24  that's another initiative that you're making, I

         25  think you thought originally that it would generate
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          2  quite a bit of money and now it's generating less.

          3  So, I was wondering if that's true and what the

          4  numbers are. Maybe you could talk about it a little

          5  bit, and what kind of communication will be

          6  transmitted?

          7                 I think it's just cell, but maybe I'm

          8  wrong. And how the process is. I know you talked

          9  about some poles that were in certain areas and they

         10  were trying to get the companies to go, I think

         11  there were six companies, to go to lower-income

         12  areas charging less, so I just want to know the

         13  status.

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BROWN: Let me

         15  address the budget issues first.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: The budget.

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BROWN: We still

         18  anticipate over the life of the franchise agreements

         19  that there will be significant revenues. Again,

         20  we're not sure what those numbers are.

         21                 The reason why, you know, I've said

         22  this before, the numbers are as they are currently

         23  in the plan, is until we do the further bids and we

         24  see what interest we get from the carriers we won't

         25  know what they are. And we've only done one auction
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          2  so far, and we are on target to make our revenues,

          3  which is, as of now, 800 for next year. We will

          4  increase those as we do additional auctions and see

          5  additional revenues coming in.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Okay, the status

          7  is what? How many poles? How many carriers?

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BROWN: I think

          9  it's roughly 900.

         10                 Do you have that number?

         11                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Nine hundred

         12  poles? Approximately.

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BROWN: That have

         14  been selected to date.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Okay. And the

         16  carriers, some of them are in areas that are not

         17  cherry picked, so-to-speak, or it's hard to know?

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BROWN: On that

         19  one let me get back to you. Obviously, Cangemi

         20  handles that area, and, unfortunately, he couldn't

         21  be with us today.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Okay. All right.

         23  And it's mostly for cell; is that also true? Or is

         24  it other, net, video? It's mostly cell?

         25                 ACTING COMMISSIONER BERGMANN: It's
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          2  mostly cells at this point.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Okay. All right.

          4                 In terms of the integrated -- you

          5  mentioned Access New York, and I was just wondering,

          6  that will do what? I think it will give people

          7  benefits? That used to be the integrated human

          8  services project.

          9                 ACTING COMMISSIONER BERGMANN: Yes.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: And that was

         11  called Access?

         12                 ACTING COMMISSIONER BERGMANN: The

         13  public facing portion is going to be Access NYC, and

         14  the idea here is to roll out a pre-screening tool

         15  that will allow people to go on line, either on

         16  their own or with the help of a facilitator at a

         17  library or community-based organization, to be able

         18  to determine by providing some information, and we

         19  have different ways of doing it so that people can

         20  do it in a five-minute time frame, or give more

         21  detailed information and get more detailed results,

         22  but they'll be able to be pre-screened for various

         23  programs for families with children, financial

         24  assistance programs, food and nutrition programs,

         25  health insurance programs, and housing programs, so
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          2  that they can get in a single consolidated fashion,

          3  a return that says what they may be eligible for,

          4  either individually or as part of their household,

          5  or what more information is required, in terms of

          6  determining eligibility.

          7                 I should note that this is not an

          8  eligibility determination tool, because it's based

          9  on the information that people provide, and that

         10  only when the application is provided to and

         11  reviewed by an agency can that determination be

         12  made.

         13                 This is the beginning, though, of

         14  building out, and a lot of what DoITT is intended to

         15  do is to work with City agencies across silos so

         16  that we can create more of a consolidated approach

         17  towards working with government. And so I'm very

         18  excited about that initiative.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: It is exciting.

         20  It just says we need broadband in New York, but

         21  we'll have that at a different conversation.

         22                 Regarding the television station,

         23  now, you have, obviously, on cable, you have 493 and

         24  then the slots that we see more regularly, the

         25  stations, and then you have the Department of
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          2  Education channel, as I call it, which I think could

          3  use more content. But that is, I just was wondering

          4  if there was any plan for deployment of digital, do

          5  some analog pull-outs, and just wondering how you

          6  think that channel could perhaps be more responsive

          7  to the way in which the world is going.

          8                 ACTING COMMISSIONER BERGMANN: We are

          9  moving towards digital, and what I could do is set

         10  up a discussion with you with Eric Weerson, our

         11  Deputy Commissioner and General Manager of NYC TV,

         12  so we can discuss that in more detail and get your

         13  thoughts on that.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Okay.

         15                 And then, finally, GIS. I know that

         16  you have great respect for I think the GIS

         17  community, but as time goes on on a policy level, I

         18  don't know if there would be a budget implication to

         19  do this. Because obviously now we can download

         20  buildings and parks and streets and outlines, and

         21  there's still a random ID with the buildings, and

         22  the idea would be to try to have more ID, like a bin

         23  number as DOB has, that could then do -- so we could

         24  do some overlays.

         25                 Again, this is just something that
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          2  would just make it easier for planning at the

          3  community board level, not to mention individuals.

          4                 Is that something that's being

          5  considered?

          6                 ACTING COMMISSIONER BERGMANN: Yes, it

          7  is.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Okay.

          9                 ACTING COMMISSIONER BERGMANN: We have

         10  a very robust, as you noted, GIS area, that's taken

         11  on a greater role Citywide, and we're doing things,

         12  for example, to assure that we have a single

         13  consolidated map of the City, so that we can share

         14  information more reliably and quickly with emergency

         15  response agencies and with the public.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Okay, thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Council Member

         18  Dickens.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Council Member

         20  Dickens.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS: Thank you so

         22  much, Chairs.

         23                 In reference to the Pole Top

         24  Franchise, what, in your opinion, do you think has

         25  caused such a vast disparity between the realized

                                                            147

          1  FINANCE, LAND USE AND TECHNOLOGY IN GOVERNMENT

          2  revenue and the forecast?

          3                 That's one budget question I have,

          4  and I have one other.

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER BROWN: Yes, I

          6  think there may have been some bad information

          7  coming out in the beginning, because we don't see it

          8  as a disparity, as much as a delay.

          9                 I think ultimately once all of the

         10  franchisees bid on the auctions and the project gets

         11  built out more then we will start to see those

         12  revenues. It's just that there's been a delay in

         13  getting there.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS: What has

         15  caused that delay?

         16                 ACTING COMMISSIONER BERGMANN: I think

         17  it's just the issue of starting up. Over the life of

         18  the franchises, which is 15 years, that we will get

         19  to the point where we need to be, and we'll be there

         20  sooner, of course, it won't take 15 years.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS: And on It's

         22  My Park, how would a local park notify you of

         23  events, or are you relying upon the Department of

         24  Parks?

         25                 ACTING COMMISSIONER BERGMANN: We work
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          2  with every agency to put up events centrally within

          3  NYC.GOV. We have an events calendar and agencies

          4  populate that calendar working with us, and we work

          5  very closely with them to manage content on the

          6  website, and to make sure that the information is

          7  up-to-date.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS: So your new

          9  launch, It's My Park, will really work with the

         10  Department of Parks?

         11                 ACTING COMMISSIONER BERGMANN: Yes,

         12  absolutely. That's a collaboration. That's a show on

         13  NYC TV that's going to highlight parks in green

         14  areas around the City so that people, visitors and

         15  residents over the summer can take advantage of our

         16  wonderful, wonderful parks.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS: And tell me

         18  something about the Council. I'm very interested to

         19  know what that is.

         20                 ACTING COMMISSIONER BERGMANN: We have

         21  heard feedback from these hearings, that the Council

         22  51 programming needed to be enhanced. I think, if I

         23  recall correctly, that Council Member Brewer was

         24  looking for a hip C-SPAN or something like that, and

         25  so we want to encourage New Yorkers to view our
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          2  programming and so additional graphics, crawlers and

          3  enhancing the show so that, one, New Yorkers can

          4  really see what happens at these hearings. It is

          5  something that we want to do to make it more

          6  accessible.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: I thought you

          8  were going to suggest replacing Council members.

          9                 ACTING COMMISSIONER BERGMANN: Not at

         10  all.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Make it more hip.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS: So, it's

         13  really an expansion of Council 51?

         14                 ACTING COMMISSIONER BERGMANN: It's a

         15  revised format to the existing programming, to make

         16  it more fun and more accessible.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS: Thank you.

         18                 ACTING COMMISSIONER BERGMANN: Right.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS: Thank you so

         20  much for your testimony.

         21                 ACTING COMMISSIONER BERGMANN: Thank

         22  you.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS: Thank you,

         24  Mr. Chair.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Can we just take
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          2  care of a minute of housekeeping, which is

          3  Councilman Gentile I think did not vote on the Land

          4  Use items. If you can vote, that would be great.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: I'm not on

          6  the Committee anymore.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: You're not on the

          8  Committee anymore, and here I was trying to --

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: I can vote

         10  anyway.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: You want to vote

         12  anyway? Come on, you can do it now.

         13                 Anybody else who is here that was not

         14  here? No? Okay.

         15                 Any other questions?

         16                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: One other quick

         17  question on field staff.

         18                 Many of the agencies come before us

         19  and talk about what they're doing on technology, and

         20  they are very pleased, I think, when they're working

         21  with you. How is that working budget-wise?

         22                 Obviously there might be some

         23  shifting. I think a lot of the agencies do need

         24  support. How do the budgets move around, if they do?

         25                 And if not, how does the work get
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          2  collaborated and coordinated?

          3                 It's a big question, but there must

          4  be some answer.

          5                 ACTING COMMISSIONER BERGMANN: Sure.

          6                 Where appropriate we have developed

          7  Citywide contracts that agencies can use so that we

          8  would have a coordinated approach towards enabling

          9  field people to have mobile devices and technology

         10  to meet their needs in the field.

         11                 Our goal is to ensure a persistent

         12  approach across agencies. Agencies go to OMB, and

         13  usually for this type of purpose get capital

         14  funding, it's part of their capital request cycle.

         15                 We are working with several agencies

         16  now that either have something pending or are about

         17  to put contracts out, and so I think that over the

         18  next several years they'll see much more of a trend

         19  towards a mobile worker that has the technology

         20  available to them that they would normally have at

         21  their desktop.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Okay, because I

         23  would support that, just like you have ACS coming

         24  with their concerns that were recently identified,

         25  Sanitation still, maybe it's good, they still sign
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          2  in the book.

          3                 Maybe that's good, maybe that's bad,

          4  but the issue is I think each agency obviously has

          5  different needs. There are some Citywide

          6  opportunities here. But it doesn't come across that

          7  way when you ask questions of each Commissioner. It

          8  comes across as disjointed, but of course they

          9  always say that they're working with you.

         10                 So, I'm just saying it would be

         11  helpful for us to have some sense in the near future

         12  as to what some of these Citywide contracts are, who

         13  is getting them, and you know, how the field staff

         14  is being appropriately equipped.

         15                 ACTING COMMISSIONER BERGMANN: Sure,

         16  we'll be happy to provide that to you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON BREWER: Okay, thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay, I think

         19  this portion of the Finance Committee joint with

         20  Land Use and Information and Technology is going to

         21  be adjourned.

         22                 We're going to recess for five

         23  minutes and then finance will continue with Chair

         24  Jim Gennaro of the Environmental Protection

         25  Committee.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: The hearing on Land

          3  Use is closed.

          4                 (Hearing concluded at 1:45 p.m.)
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